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Treasurer’s Report RIEHRE

Report of the Treasurer to the Council on the Group's Financial
Statements for the Year ended 30 June 2019

Overview

In celebration of its 25th anniversary, the University held a ceremony

in May 2019 to open a time capsule placed on campus in the 1990s,
unearthing a number of items and documents that bear testimony to the
transformation of the University.

It was a fruitful year for the University as it achieved excellent results

in research, in terms of both the number of funded projects and the
amount awarded in the discipline of Education in the 2018/19 Research
Grants Council’s General Research Fund and Early Career Scheme
funding exercises. In addition, the University honoured six students who
won medals at the 2018 Asian Games and a new scholarship, namely
Postgraduate Degree Programme Scholarship for Elite Athletes was
established to help elite athletes pursue postgraduate degrees at either
master’s or doctoral level. The University has been home to 74 elite
athletes since 2010.

In 2018/19, the University recorded an overall net surplus of $1.9
million for the year, of which a deficit of $16.3 million was incurred by
University Grants Committee (“UGC”)-funded activities and a surplus
of $18.2 million was derived from non-UGC-funded activities. At the
Group level, the net surplus of $2.4 million included a small surplus

of about $0.2 million and $0.3 million from its subsidiaries, The
EdUHK Schools Limited (“Schools Limited”) and The EdUHK School of
Continuing and Professional Education Limited (“SCPE") respectively.

Operating Results and Financial Position

The Group adopted the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Statement of Recommended Practice (“SORP") for
the UGC-funded Institutions in Hong Kong. Note 1 of the Consolidated
Financial Statements shows the details of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group.

Income

Compared to 2017/18, there was an increase of $9.3 million in the
recurrent grants and an increase of $2.1 million in the earmarked
grants. Tuition, programmes and other fees of the University increased
by $42.4 million and the increased amount was contributed mainly
from non-UGC-funded programmes. Total interest and net investment
income amounted to $51.9 million, significantly over last year’s total
of $11.5 million. Better performance of the investment portfolios
managed by the investment managers and higher deposit interest rates
were the main reasons. Furthermore, donation and benefactions of the
University decreased by $14.8 million to $52.1 million as a number of
donations were held pending the 8th Matching Grant Scheme.
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Expenditure

Total expenditure of the Group amounted to $1,818 million, an increase
of $168.5 million as compared to that of last year. Expenditure of the
University proper increased by $161.6 million to $1,768.8 million.

At the University level, total amount of $1,235.2 million was spent

on teaching, learning and research, equivalent to 70% of the total
expenditure. The increase of $99.6 million against last year was
mainly due to extra budget allocated to faculties and departments for
recruitment of additional academic and teaching staff to strengthen the
University’s teaching and research capacity in preparing for the coming
Research Assessment Exercise.

Under institutional support, an increase of $62.0 million as compared
to 2017/18 was recorded. The major part of the increase came from
the premises and related expenses. About $47.4 million additional
funding was allocated for improvement of infrastructure. In addition,

an increase in the expenses of $9.1 million for student and general
education services was due mainly to the rise in expenditure on
repainting, minor works, minor equipment in hostels and extra-curricular
activities for students. An increase in staff costs resulting from annual
pay adjustments also attributed to the increase in total expenditure.

At the subsidiary level, the SCPE had ceased to offer programme and
course since 2014/15 and the expenditure was to cover the charges
for administration services and rental of storage space provided by the
University. The Schools Limited incurred a total expenditure of $49.7
million which was mainly for staff costs.

The following diagram shows the breakdown of the total expenditure of
the University:
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Financial Position

The University’s total net assets remains more or less the same at
$1,224 million at the end of 2018/19. As higher interest rates were
offered, more money had been placed with banks for longer term time
deposits which resulted in an increase of $60.9 million in bank deposits
with original maturity of over three months. Overall, cash and deposits
reduced slightly to $1,305 million.

The total balance of the General and Development Reserve Fund
(“GDRF") reached $482 million at the end of the year. The deficit of
$16.3 million incurred by UGC-funded activities was covered by $12.3
million from the GRDF and $4 million from the Matching grant funds.

Outlook

The financial position of the University is healthy with a total
accumulated fund of over $1.2 billion at the end of the year. For the
coming triennium, from 2019/20 to 2021/22, the UGC has already
indicated in the Allocation Letter the proposed amount of recurrent
grants that would be allocated to the University. As recurrent grants
from UGC form a major part of the University’s total income, the risk
that the University’s financial planning being affected by adverse
economic circumstances will be low in the coming three years.

The recent Sino-US Trade War and the social movement in Hong Kong
will definitely have a big impact on its economy. The University is
keeping a close eye on the development of the situation and will adjust
its financial planning to prepare for any changes in the economic
environment.

Ms Susanna CHIU Lai-kuen, MH, JP

Treasurer

The Council of The Education University of Hong Kong
27 September 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report % 3z #% %A & &5

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Council of

The Education University of Hong Kong

(Incorporated in Hong Kong under The Education University of
Hong Kong Ordinance)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Education
University of Hong Kong (“the University”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 10 to 76, which comprise

the Consolidated and University Statements of Financial Position

as at 30 June 2019, the Consolidated and University Statements of
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and University Statements of
Changes in Funds and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the
year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group and the University as at
30 June 2019 and of their financial performance and the Group’s cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's

Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The Council of the University is responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information included in the
financial report, other than the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover

the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Council of

The Education University of Hong Kong (Continued)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong under The Education University of
Hong Kong Ordinance)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Council for the consolidated
financial statements

The Council of the University is responsible for the preparation of

the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and for such internal
control as the Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Council is
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Council intends
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Council is assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging its
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 15 of The Education University of
Hong Kong Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Council of

The Education University of Hong Kong (Continued)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong under The Education University of
Hong Kong Ordinance)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Council.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Council of

The Education University of Hong Kong (Continued)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong under The Education University of
Hong Kong Ordinance)

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audit of the Group. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

27 September 2019
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THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &H##H B K2

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bx 5B #iB55) - BT £ BB BE )

Statements of Financial Position Bf#& iR &

At 30 June 2019 —Z—AFRA=+H

Group F&E

Note
=3
Non-current Assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment L ER - I 3
Investments & 4
Held-to-maturity financial assets BEZIHREMEE 5
Financial assets measured at RSP NG T E R
amortised cost CRVEE 5
Current Assets RENEE
Financial assets measured at REER AT ER
amortised cost TRIAE 5
Contract assets EHEE 7
Accounts receivable, deposits EUWEER - ‘RE &
and prepayments TE IR 8
Financial assets measured at fair value 1ZA R EEF ABZRH
through profit or loss SREE 9
Bank deposits with original maturity RE|EAEBBA=1EA
over three months 2 TE BT 6
Cash and cash equivalents Re kB EEY 10
Current Liabilities RENEE
Contract liabilities EHAaE 7
Accounts payable and accruals FERTBR R R FERTFRIR 11
Provision for employee benefits EEBNEE 12
Deferred income LA 13
Net Current Assets REEEFE
Total Assets less Current Liabilities #AEERAEEME
Non-current Liabilities FREBEE
Provision for employee benefits 1B BRI 12
Deferred capital funds BEEAES 14
Net Assets BEEFRE
Funds e
UGC funds HESEPES 15
Restricted funds EEES 16
Other funds HinEe 17
Total Funds HEHE

Professor Frederick MA Si-hang, GBS, JP
BRTHEE  @5HEE  KATat
Chairman of the Council RE& X &
Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan-leung, SBS, JP,

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 27 September 2019.

University X

2019 2018 2019 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fi T Fi T
1,801,555 1,822,001 1,794,855 1,814,858
8,244 1 8,244 1

- 40,563 - 40,563

9,163 = 9,163 =
1,818,962 1,862,565 1,812,262 1,855,422
31,383 - 31,383 -
16,074 = 16,074 -
118,390 101,863 118,024 101,573
397,029 373,567 397,029 373,567
876,681 815,451 858,998 798,051
466,016 560,951 445,980 544,589
1,905,573 1,851,832 1,867,488 1,817,780
69,534 = 67,922 =
166,223 218,245 154,715 208,771
113,871 103,371 113,655 103,180
312,974 323,609 312,634 323,256
662,602 645,225 648,926 635,207
1,242,971 1,206,607 1,218,562 1,182,573
3,061,933 3,069,172 3,030,824 3,037,995
15,163 12,975 15,163 12,975
1,797,285 1,816,925 1,791,479 1,810,580
1,812,448 1,829,900 1,806,642 1,823,555
1,249,485 1,239,272 1,224,182 1,214,440
559,907 586,769 559,907 586,769
120,344 109,328 120,344 109,328
569,234 543,175 543,931 518,343
1,249,485 1,239,272 1,224,182 1,214,440

REGN_Z—NFNAZTERIE IR RIS ®RE
Ms Susanna CHIU Lai-kuen, MH, JP
HEBEL L KEFE - KTt

Treasurer &JE&

Mr Chaddy WONG Kam-chiu

RICRHEE REFIEE - KF@L
Officier dans I'Ordre des Palmes Académiques JABIGEHE EE4EE)=
President i &

Director of Finance B1 IR R K

The notes on pages 14 to 76 form part of these consolidated financial statements. 14276 B 4951+ /8 A& B R Z A — 5617 °
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THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &/H##H B K2

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #4855 - BTB £ BB BE)

Statements of Comprehensive Income 2wtz %

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019 #ZEZ—ZF—NFNA=THILEFE

Income

Government subventions

Tuition, programmes and
other fees

Donations and benefactions

Auxiliary services

Interest and net investment
income

Other income

Expenditure

Teaching, learning and research
Teaching and research
Library
Central computing facilities
Other academic services

Institutional support
Management and general
Premises and related expenses
Student and general

education services

Surplus and total
comprehensive income
for the year before transfers

Transfer (from)/to
UGC funds
Restricted funds
Other funds

A Segment Report showing the income and expenditure of the Group and the University
under UGC-funded and Non-UGC-funded operations is presented in Note 18 of the financial

statements.

Note
Bt
['ON
TR 19
B8  REMEMKkE
20
BRRIBE 21
P BB AR 7 22
B RIEE Fz
23
E AU
] 24
HEB - BRI
BRI
EE
FRRE IR
Efth E21MTAR A
HEI®R
BN —MREIE
RE KBRS
B4 N —RHE R
HEAANTERR
REEKGEATE
=R (8) /&
HESEPES 15
EEES 16
HihHKS 17

Group Z%MH

University X

2019 2018 2019 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
F T i T
1,100,283 1,065,081 1,063,926 1,033,371
552,773 508,977 541,026 498,640
52,251 66,886 52,069 66,839
37,291 36,282 37,816 36,426
52,389 11,652 51,894 11,456
25,339 26,425 23,940 25,334
1,820,326 1,715,303 1,770,671 1,672,066
1,054,898 975,056 1,007,927 934,847
65,483 59,115 65,483 59,115
94,294 79,469 94,294 79,469
67,523 62,165 67,523 62,165
109,641 104,237 109,420 104,042
308,320 260,807 306,338 258,895
117,802 108,657 117,792 108,656
1,817,961 1,649,506 1,768,777 1,607,189
2,365 65,797 1,894 64,877
(16,444) 21,854 (16,444) 21,854
264 153 264 153
18,545 43,790 18,074 42,870
2,365 65,797 1,894 64,877

FEBRARNEABHAEENZRE ([HAE]) EBRIFEHE
EEEBM DRI E - BHNF I FREANE18 -

The notes on pages 14 to 76 form part of these consolidated financial statements. 14276 B #)M1:#/8 A ir & BT 3R E I — 5517 ©
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THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &#&#E K2
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bx 5B #iB55) - BT £ BB BE )

Statements of Changes in Funds E&# 8%

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019 H==—Z— NS NA=+HIFE

Group A& H

UGC Restricted Other Total
funds funds funds Wz
HEG EEES HitnE e
BEPES
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Tt Tt T
Note Note 15 Note 16 Note 17
Bt Biat 15 Kiat 16 Bt 17
Balance at 1 July 2017 R-E—tELtA-—BHNERE 580,819 93,271 499,385 1,173,475
Transfer from statement of EEEREIER
comprehensive income 21,854 153 43,790 65,797
Inter-fund transfer EeHER (15,904) 15,904 = -
Balance at 30 June 2018 RZE-—N\FEXRA=THNWER 586,769 109,328 543,175 1,239,272
Impact on initial application of VAR BB M MRS 2R
HKFRS 9 FFHTE 1.3(a) (FF) 334 - 7,514 7,848
Adjusted balance at 1 July 2018 R=-Z—N\E+tA—AHK
AREET 587,103 109,328 550,689 1,247,120
Transfer (to)/from statement of #i (2)/a2EAKER
comprehensive income (16,444) 264 18,545 2,365
Inter-fund transfer HE MR (10,752) 10,752 = =
Balance at 30 June 2019 R-B—hFEARA=ZTHNEE 559,907 120,344 569,234 1,249,485
University # X
UGC Restricted Other Total
funds funds funds wzm
HEEG BEES HEtmEe
BHES
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Tt Tt T
Note Note 15 Note 16 Note 17
HtaE Ktat 15 Kiat 16 Btex 17
Balance at 1 July 2017 R-ZEB—tFELtA—BNER 580,819 93,271 475473 1,149,563
Transfer from statement of EE e REER
comprehensive income 21,854 153 42,870 64,877
Inter-fund transfer HEMER (15,904) 15,904 = -
Balance at 30 June 2018 R-EB—N\FRA=Z+HNEF 586,769 109,328 518,343 1,214,440
Impact on initial application of TIERA BB RS 2R
HKFRS 9 FIRHR R 1.3(a) (FF) 334 - 7,514 7,848
Adjusted balance at 1 July 2018 R=-Z—N\FtA—HK
REEET 587,103 109,328 525,857 1,222,288
Transfer (to)/from statement of @ (2)/a2EkaER
comprehensive income (16,444) 264 18,074 1,894
Inter-fund transfer HEMER (10,752) 10,752 = -
Balance at 30 June 2019 R-EB-NFARA=THNER 559,907 120,344 543,931 1,224,182

The notes on pages 14 to 76 form part of these consolidated financial statements. 14276 B 4951+ /8 A& B R Z A — 5617 °
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THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &#&#HE K2
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #4855 - BTB £ BB BE)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement &R E&FER

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019 B2 —ZF—NFNA=THILFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash (used in)/generated from operations

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss

Increase in balances held at the investment managers

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net increase in bank deposits with
original maturity over three months

Redemption of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Redemption of held-to-maturity financial assets
upon maturity

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Grants and donations received for
additions of property, plant and equipment

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year

EETBNRERE
2E (R /EENRE

BEEY (A (EERSFR

REFBHNRERE
REANZA A BER AR
RIRE IR 7 SR BRI AN
HEME - HasRRE

1S FRIA
REBREB=@AZ

TE BRI A
mEizs R EBEFA

BENEREE
BOSAEEIHASREE

EUFIE
RATHMABR TR
METDNRERE
RIBEME - Wz kiE
PUREN#E B & R 385K
BATPRSHREFR

RERREEBEBNHORD FHE
FONRE RREZEY

FRO[ERASEEY

Group &&EH

2019 2018
Note $'000 $'000
Bzt Fi F

27(a)(F)  (38,734) 89,011

(38,734) 89,011
(122,780) (81,898)

- (377,672)

- (12,253)

18 1

(61,230) (150,666

50 50

- 24,990

20,805 13,608
(163,137)  (583,840)
27(b)(Z) 106,936 90,196
106,936 90,196
(94,935)  (404,633)

560,951 965,584

10 466,016 560,951

The notes on pages 14 to 76 form part of these consolidated financial statements. 14276 B #)M1:#/8 A ir & BT 3R E I — 5517 ©
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THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &H##H B K2

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bx 5B #iB55) - BT £ BB BE )

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#3RR st

1.1

1.2

14

Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)

and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong. These financial statements also comply with Statement of
Recommended Practice (“SORP”) for the University Grants Committee
(“UGC")-Funded Institutions in Hong Kong. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are

first effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting

period of the Group and the University. Note 1.3 provides information

on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

The Cost Allocation Guidelines for UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded
activities (“CAGs”) is first implemented in the current accounting
period of the University as stipulated in the UGC Notes on Procedures.
This is also a disclosure requirement under SORP and is reflected in
the segment report in Note 18.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2019 comprise the University and its subsidiaries (together referred to
as “the Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise stated in
the accounting policies set out below. The preparation of financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application

of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenditure. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors that are believed

to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

The Education University of Hong Kong Financial Report 2018/2019
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1.2

FESHBORBIE

BREH

REA MR RILRE B A A G PR N E
R (EAFBREERD) - B BREAEE
RO ER (EBHBMELR) - (FEGFE
A) BEBSHMASERNRERELER
Rz gstRAIMARS - ZFEHBEREIGE
REHEEDZES ([HEE]) BREDK
BB AR R (ZEER]) FrREL - ]
THEASEERBRAZEZSTHE -

EEGHEAEEN T BENASHFEER
R AT R ER AT IR M FT AT R B FT R (BB
BB mELER) - BB ELEHAEHRE
B EE S| BE AT ML G RE N ST
REFORAPBHRRARYR - BEERET
KT8

REREEN (BFESE)  HKREEN SIS
B RBHEGEDEIFHRE S BRI
AN EIES| ([RAD#EES]]) - SRk
AR EREENER - WRREMTE 185

WDIERE -

BB ROBREE
BET-NFRA=THIFENGEVT
BERBEHANZME AR (Gl [KEE]) -

BRTXARENETBESAHRBIN - HEAY
BmEFENELKAEREER - BHEE
FERAETE (BB BMELER) O BR
REF O FHYERIBERNER  URHEE -
BE WA HNF RS ERERF EH
B - fHEARER - BLbET RBERRERE
NENERIEEEREERBARREEDN
BHEAZMmMEHN  HERKATEREESR
FEREMEE T SMEERAGENREEER
PRVEH FI BT BT - BB AR5 A B E

T e

B R R R B R - MBEE
fE ST ER S L~ - KYRERER
EBRPOTERE  IMSRAIRAS AT EE BRI S AR
ERE - AR L 5T BRI Ko
BAR T LATERR ©



THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &/H##H B K2

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #4855 - BTB £ BB BE)

1

1.3

Investments in institutional entities

Derecognition of expected credit losses

Net increase in funds at 1 July 2018

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Change in accounting standards

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments

to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period of

the Group and the University. Of these, the following developments

are relevant to the Group and the University’s financial statements.

(a)

(b)

(c)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance
consideration

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is

not yet effective for the current accounting period.

(a)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial instruments: recognition
and measurement. It sets out the requirements for recognising
and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some
contracts to buy or sell non-financial items.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to items

that existed at 1 July 2018 in accordance with the transition
requirements. The Group has recognised the cumulative effect
of initial application as an adjustment to the opening funds at 1
July 2018. Therefore, comparative information continues to be
reported under HKAS 39.

The following table summarises the impact of transition to
HKFRS 9 on funds at 1 July 2018.

RIUEBRBORERERAABENE

now measured at fair value

RIFERERIRR R EEER

on accounts receivable

- \FtA-BNESEINFE

1

1.3

Notes to the Financial Statements

B R M
EREBREE (4)
Bt RRIEE

BRGAASEN T ZEMOTBU RS
R R BRI IMEEANER] - LEAREE
RBRERNGTHRERER - BF - TIIH
FEREAEEFBANGEHRERAMH -

(F) (EBUBMELL) FOR—EmMITA

() (BEEHBHREER) 158 -RET
F&#RUA

(M) (BEPBMELRE) F2258— MK
R MIENZ SR

AR B B AR PRI E AT & R EA R 8 R AR R
MR R

(F) (BEBUBMERLY) FoR-—SRBTA

BRUBIRE L ESRMA TG E
AFIR— SR TH : ERRTENR
Bi5sl - EYIEHANTESREE
CRMEBENETHEERHEESRHIER
ZEFRMRE

REEDRZBER TR PEREEM
BHRELYFEIRN T N\ELH—
BEERIER - AEBBR T —N\F
+ A — ARV RAZEHNENN R
S E UWHAREESHBSRE -
It EEREREEREES G ERE
3952 -

TREBET VIR EEM B RS LR
FORH T -NFLA-BELHT
2.

Group and University <&@k

UGC Other Total
funds funds Fitcl
HEE HEtmES
BEES
$'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Tt Fr
Note 15 Note 17
Kt 15 e 17
6,926 6,926
334 588 922
334 7,514 7,848

EBHBKRE 2018/2019 BT & 1 5



THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &#&#E K2
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bx 5B #iB55) - BT £ BB BE )

1

1.3

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Change in accounting standards (Continued)

(@) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to

previous accounting standards and the transition approach are

set out below:

(i

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal

classification categories: measured at amortised cost, at

fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)

and at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"). These

supersede HKAS 39's categories of held-to-maturity

investments, loans and receivables, available-for-sale

financial assets and financial assets measured at FVPL.

The classification of financial assets under HKFRS

9 is based on the business model under which the

financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow

characteristics.

The following table shows the original measurement

categories for each class of the Group’s and the

University’s financial assets under HKAS 39 and

reconciles the carrying amounts of those financial

assets determined in accordance with HKAS 39 to those

determined in accordance with HKFRS 9:

Investment carried at cost DR AFIBRIRE
Investments in institutional entities ~ AR BHEEHRE
Financial assets carried LA 85 AR A 51 BR Y
at amortised cost SMEE
Held-to-maturity financial assets BEZRIEEMEE
Financial assets measured R R AT ER
at amortised cost SREE
Accounts receivable, deposits EUERR - e Rk
and prepayments TERTFIE
Bank deposits with original maturity FREHIEBB=EA2
over three months EHTFER
Cash and cash equivalents Be RRSEEY
Financial assets at fair value BRARBETTABEN
through profit or loss SREE
Fixed income securities EEWAEH
Equities S
Investment in unlisted unit trust JEEMEMEFIRE

16

HKAS 39

carrying amount

at 30 June 2018
BB ERTAERIZE395%
RZZE—N\F
ANA=THR/EREE
$'000

T

40,563

101,863

815,451
560,951

256,838
115,417
1,312

The Education University of Hong Kong Financial Report 2018/2019
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1.3

EREBREE ()
Bt ERIEE (@)
(F) (BEHBRELD) FoOR-S@MT

8 (#)

BESENENEE N ENE—
B RBET ARSI

THEENTRABENDHE

ERMBRELENFEIRE LR
BEVPBEA=ZMIZRN : 8
SRR - AR EEA ARMLE
Al kAR EER ABER
B EERRTERSGERSE
IFHBFAERHKRE B
g TR - R EEREER
BAFEEFABENSREE
Bl - RIBEBIMIEMELERF
B EMEENSRREESH
BEMEBEAREANRER
ENFMETE -

TERINTAEERHRRNZEE
BEERBEEGAEAEIN
WRAEBHEA  U¥ZELRE
ERBEEESAERFEIORETE
HAREE SRR R E BV B IRE L
R OSRETE MAREERIER -

Group #&E

Reclassification Remeasurement

BHHE
$'000
T

(40,563)

40,563

HKFRS 9
carrying amount
at 1 July 2018
BAMBRE
RIS
RZZE—N\F
EFtE tA—BNEEE
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt

6,926 6,927

- 40,563
102,785

= 815,451
= 560,951

= 256,838
- 115,417
= 1,312
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THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG BE##HE A& B ISR M ST
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #4855 - BTB £ BB BE)

1  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 EEETEREE (8)
1.3 Change in accounting standards (Continued] 1.3 EFH¥REE (&)
S8R R BRI A
(@) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued) ) iijé ABRERRD Bop—aMT
=
(i)  Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities (=) REENSRAGENDEA (7

(Continued)

University # X

HKFRS 9
HKAS 39 carrying amount
carrying amount at 1 July 2018
at 30 June 2018 BAMRE
BB EHERAIE 395 ZRIFESR
MR=—Z—N\F Reclassification Remeasurement RZZE-N\F
NAZTAMEEE EEiiap | E¥ETE B —BNEREE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fx Fx T Fx
Investment carried at cost DA A FIBR Y 3R &
Investments in institutional entities AL BHEENIZE 1 = 6,926 6,927
Financial assets carried DU S8 R A< 51 BR Y
at amortised cost TREE
Held-to-maturity financial assets BEZIHReREE 40,563 (40,563) - -
Financial assets measured RE K AT 2N
at amortised cost CREE - 40,563 = 40,563
Accounts receivable, deposits EBERR - R Rk
and prepayments FEfIFRIA 101,573 - 922 102,495
Bank deposits with original maturity REHIEBB=AF 2
over three months TE BT 798,051 - = 798,051
Cash and cash equivalents Re RRESEEY 544,589 - - 544 589
Financial assets at fair value BRANEETABEN
through profit or loss SRIEE
Fixed income securities & FE A TEH 256,838 - - 256,838
Equities fRE 115,417 - - 115,417
Investment in unlisted unit trust JEEMEBEREFERE 1,312 - - 1,312
Note: Bt

The measurement categories for all financial liabilities remain the same. EZBAENF BEFIRETE -H

(ii)

The carrying amounts for all financial liabilities at 1 July 2018 have not
been impacted by the initial application of HKFRS 9.

The Group and the University did not designate or de-designate any
financial asset or financial liability at FVOCI at 1 July 2018.

Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39
with the “expected credit loss” (“ECL") model. The ECL
model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises
ECLs earlier than under the “incurred loss” accounting
model in HKAS 39.

EREER=—F-NFLA—HKEE
W ARRE BB & ERIEI WA HIIE IR
Vil 2

FTEBRMAR=FE—NFLH— R
HEXBUREEE I EMEAEXNSHAE
BEAREEFAEMBGERETES
5l

(=) EEBEA

BEVBEREEYNESRIA (18
HEEBR| EXRREEG:
EAFI0HN [DEEBE
B - BHEEBEREXZRY
EREENHEBERERRSES
E FAEREXTEEEEY
ERERE LG LERE395H
BEEABREFEARTE -

BHRBERE 2018/2019 M H & 17



THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &#&#E K2
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bx 5B #iB55) - BT £ BB BE )

1  Significant accounting policies [Continued) 1 EEETBREE (8)
1.3 Change in accounting standards [Continued) 1.3 EFtRREE (&)
(a) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued) () (BBHBREER) FOR—SmTH
(#)
(i) Credit losses (Continued) (Z) 1=EEE (8)

The Group applies the new ECL model to the financial
assets measured at amortised cost (including cash and

AEBRBHOERAEEBEE
ARNEHERAFTENEREE
(BREReMBRLSEY  BK
IR A ERSR) -

cash equivalents, accounts and other receivables).

For further details on the Group’s accounting policy for BEEAEEEZEEEETHEYN

accounting for credit losses, see Note 1.7. S ERHIE1T7 o

B2

The following table reconciles the closing allowance for
doubtful debts determined in accordance with HKAS

RZB-NFRA=THREE
Bt EREI9RE FHHRR
REHEER-_Z-N\FLA—B
REBEEBY B REERESRET
HHII R AR BB SRR AN T -

39 as at 30 June 2018 with the opening allowance for
doubtful debts determined in accordance with HKFRS 9
as at 1 July 2018.

Group A& University Xk

$'000 $'000
Fit Tt
Allowance for doubtful debts at 30 June 2018 BEEBETEEIFR =T —N\F
under HKAS 39 NA=ZTBERNREEE 3,160 3,128
Credit loss derecognised at 1 July 2018 RZE—N\FLA—BKRILEER
on Accounts Receivable RSB EEEE (922) (922)
Allowance for doubtful debts at 1 July 2018 REE BT BEIRELREHR
under HKFRS 9 R-ZT—\FtA—BRNREEE 2,238 2,206
Impairment losses recognised during the year FAERMEEER 1,296 1,296
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible 4 i e Yk BR F1 VA N AEUR [ 00 7R0E (1,490) (1,458)
Reversal of provision for impairment o] RARE S (748) (748)
Allowance for doubtful debts at 30 June 2019 —E-NENA=ZTANREREE 1,296 1,296
(b) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (2) (BHEPBMEER) B15%REER

BRI

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for

recognising revenue and some costs from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18, Revenue, which
covered revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering of

services, and HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which specified

the accounting for construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative and quantitative

disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the financial

statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and

uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with

customers. The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have any material

impact on the financial position and the financial result of the

Group but only the presentation of contract assets and liabilities.

18
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THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &#&#HE K2
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #4855 - BTB £ BB BE)

1 Significant accounting policies [(Continued)

1.3 Change in accounting standards (Continued)

(b)

(c)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised only if the Group
has an unconditional right to consideration. If the Group
recognises the related income (see Note 1.15) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration for the promised
services in the contract, then the entitlement to consideration
is classified as a contract asset. Similarly, a contract liability,
rather than a payable, is recognised when a customer pays
non-refundable consideration, or is contractually required to pay
non-refundable consideration and the amount is already due,
before the Group recognises the related income. For a single
contract with the customer, either a net contract asset or a net
contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts, contract
assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not
presented on a net basis (see Note 1.9).

Previously, contract balances relating to courses and services
were presented in the statement of financial position under
“accounts and other receivables” or “accounts and other
payables” respectively and the income was recognised for the
reasons explained in paragraph above.

To reflect these changes in presentation, the Group has made
the following adjustments at 1 July 2018, as a result of the
adoption of HKFRS 15:

(i) “Accounts receivable” amounting to $9,469,000 relating
to contracts provision for courses and services for the
Group and the University which were previously included
in accounts receivable, deposits and prepayments (Note 8)
are now included under contract assets (Note 7(a)); and

(i) “Receipts in advance” amounting to $59,470,000 and
$58,002,000 relating to tuition and hostels fees received
in advance for the Group and the University respectively
which were previously included in accounts payable and
accruals (Note 11) are now included under contract
liabilities (Note 7(b)).

HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance
consideration

This interpretation provides guidance on determining “the date
of the transaction” for the purpose of determining the exchange
rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense

or income (or part of it) arising from a transaction in which

an entity receives or pays advance consideration in a foreign
currency.

1 FEE

Notes to the Financial Statements
g s ek

sTBURBIE ()

1.3 EEHEEE Q)

(Z2)

(EBMBMEER]) F15R—IRETP
BRI ()

RIEB BT BEREEAE 155  EEX
SEESEGGEANKURRES 18
RIEMAR TR o e 2N 5= B 5 F] M AR 1 2
BAEGEFBREOREAHEREBRA
(2BM:E1.15) - AIRREESER
BREE - A EREEEREBK
ARl BEFPIMAATRENRENIR
BHHREBEPAINTARENRELRS
HIEC R - ZRBEERRANE
EMIERMER - BEFHRITNE—FA
2 gUERNEEFELANBEFE
25 - EMANmE - THEGLHY
EHNEERGHNBEIANFEZY (2
BIF{EE1.9) o

B - RREARHABOL OBEH
BIRBHERAER [ MR - 28 R
B HOR) o [AEAR 3RAE A 30
T 250 - TABRAR EXALRET
i -

BRBZERD - AEMERBEEH
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Change in accounting standards (Continued)

(c)  HK(FRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance
consideration (Continued)

The Interpretation clarifies that “the date of the transaction” is the
date on initial recognition of the non-monetary asset or liability
arising from the payment or receipt of advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance of recognising
the related item, the date of the transaction for each payment

or receipt should be determined in this way. The adoption of
HK(IFRIC) 22 does not have any material impact on the financial
position and the financial result of the Group.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

Investments in subsidiaries are consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised gains arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the

extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the University’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses (see Note
1.7), unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or included in
a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Translation of foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Group's functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting

period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction date

is the date on which the Group initially recognises such non-monetary
assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The Education University of Hong Kong Financial Report 2018/2019
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1.6

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 1.7).

Construction in progress represents buildings and other property,
plant and equipment under construction and is stated at cost less
any impairment losses (see Note 1.7), and is not depreciated.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

The cost of a property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits
expected to be obtained from the use of the property, plant and
equipment, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that
asset.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item

of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on
the date of retirement or disposal.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over their expected useful
lives of 7 years or the unexpired period of the lease on a straight-line
basis, whichever is shorter. Depreciation of other property, plant and
equipment is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the

straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:
- Buildings 50 years
- Fixtures and equipment 3to b5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted, if appropriate, annually.

1
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1.7 EEHBEREERE
RESBMTARAHEENEERE

1  Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.7 Credit losses and impairment of assets

(a) Credit losses from financial instruments and contract assets

() Policy applicable from 1 July 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
loss (“ECLs”) on financial assets carried at amortised cost
and contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see Note
1.9).

Financial assets measured at fair value, including fixed
income securities, equities and investment in unlisted unit
trust, are not subject to the ECL assessment.

- Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls for fixed-rate financial
assets, accounts and other receivables and
contract assets are discounted using the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition or

an approximation thereof, where the effect of
discounting is material.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and

22 The Education University of Hong Kong Financial Report 2018/2019
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Notes to the Financial Statements

THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG BE##HE A& B ISR M ST
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1  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 EEEHECREE (8)
1.7 Credit losses and impairment of assets [Continued) 1.7 EEHERSERE (&)
(a) Credit losses from financial instruments and contract assets () kREZRMIEREHNEENEESBE
(Continued) (%)
(I)  Policy applicable from 1 July 2018 (Continued) (—) BZZE— \FtA—HRBEAN

BR (&)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for accounts and other receivables
and contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is 12 months past due. The
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.7 Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued]

(a) Credit losses from financial instruments and contract assets
(Continued)

(I)  Policy applicable from 1 July 2018 (Continued)

- Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant increase
in credit risk is performed on either an individual
basis or a collective basis. When the assessment

is performed on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and credit
risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in the statement of comprehensive income.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &&#E A& B RSRE M S
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B &¢BH5) » Fre < BB BT )

1  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 EEEHECREE (8)
1.7 Credit losses and impairment of assets [Continued) 1.7 EEHERSERE (&)
(@)  Credit losses from financial instruments and contract assets () RELMIAREHNEENREEERE
(Continued) (#)

(I)  Policy applicable from 1 July 2018 (Continued)

- Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or
contract asset is written off (either partially or in full)
to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-
off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income in the period in which the
recovery occurs.

(I)  Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2018

Prior to 1 July 2018, an “incurred loss” model was used
to measure impairment losses on financial assets not
classified as at FVPL (e.g. accounts and other receivables
and held-to-maturity financial assets). Under the
“incurred loss” model, an impairment loss was recognised
only when there was objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment included:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
an investment in an equity instrument below its cost.
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1 EEEBOREIE (4)
1.7 EEBEREERE (4)

1

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.7 Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued]

26

Credit losses from financial instruments and contract assets
(Continued)

Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2018 (Continued)

If any such evidence existed, an impairment loss was
determined and recognised as follows:

For accounts and other receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, impairment loss was
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate, where the effect of discounting was material.
This assessment was made collectively where these
financial assets shared similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and had not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial
assets which were assessed for impairment collectively
were based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreased and the decrease could be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment

loss was recognised, the impairment loss was reversed
through the statement of comprehensive income. A
reversal of an impairment loss was only recognised to the
extent that it did not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

When the recovery of a debtor or other financial assets
carried at amortised cost was considered doubtful but not
remote, associated impairment losses were recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group was satisfied that
recovery was remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
was written off against the gross carrying amount of

those assets directly. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account were
reversed against the allowance account. Other changes

in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly were recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #4855 - BTB £ BB BE)

1  Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.7 Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(b)  Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period to identify indications that property,
plant and equipment and investments in subsidiaries in the
statement of financial position may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of

its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of time value

of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised

in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable)
or value in use (if determinable).

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. A reversal of impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have

been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited

to the statement of comprehensive income in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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1  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 EEBEREE (&)
1.8 Financial assets 1.8 SREE

FEEEREREERE (RWBRARZERE
RO 2 EREHIIAT ©

The Group’s policies for investments in financial assets, other than
investments in subsidiaries, are set out below.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group REEBTFAEBEA/MLERE S QBRI R

28

commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire. The

investments are initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable

transaction costs, except for those investments measured at FVPL

for which transaction costs are recognised directly in the statement

of comprehensive income. These investments are subsequently

accounted for as follows, depending on their classification:

(I)  Policy applicable from 1 July 2018

(a)

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified
into one of the following measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest

income from the investment is calculated using the

effective interest method (see Note 1.15).

- fair value at FVPL if the investment does not meet
the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment,
the Group makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made
if the investment meets the definition of equity from the
issuer’s perspective. Dividends from an investment in
equity securities, irrespective of whether classified as

at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income in accordance with the policy set
out in Note 1.15.
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THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &/H##H B K2

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #4855 - BTB £ BB BE)

1  Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.8 Financial assets (Continued]

(1)  Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2018

Investments in securities held for trading were classified as
financial assets measured at FVPL. Any attributable transaction
costs were recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income as incurred. At the end of each reporting period, the
fair value was remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Dated debt securities that the Group had the positive ability and
intention to hold to maturity were classified as held-to-maturity
financial assets. Held-to-maturity financial assets were stated
at amortised cost (for impairment see Note 1.7(a)(Il) — policy
applicable prior to 1 July 2018).

1.9 Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises income (see
Note 1.15) before being unconditionally entitled to the consideration
under the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets are
assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy set out in Note 1.7(a)
and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the consideration
has become unconditional (see Note 1.10).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related income (see
Note 1.15). A contract liability would also be recognised if the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration before the Group
recognises the related income. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see Note 1.10).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract asset or
a net contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts, contract
assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented
on a net basis.

1.10 Accounts and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional

right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration is
unconditional if only the passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due. If income has been recognised before the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset (see Note 1.9).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less allowance for credit losses (see Note 1.7(a)).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bx 5B #iB55) - BT £ BB BE )

1

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for expected
credit losses in accordance with the policy set out in Note 1.7(a).

1.12 Accounts payable and accruals

Accounts payable and accruals are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

1.13 Employee benefits

30

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and development leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability for unutilised annual leave
and development leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(b)  Superannuation scheme

The University has set up a superannuation scheme (“the
Scheme”) to provide its employees with benefits on retirement or
termination of employment.

Members of the Scheme contribute 5% of their basic

monthly salaries to the Scheme and benefits are paid to

them on their retirement or on leaving employment subject to
certain conditions as stipulated in the Scheme’s trust deed.
Contributions to the Scheme are expensed as incurred and other
than those monthly contributions, the University has no further
obligation for the payment of termination or retirement benefits
to its employees.

(c)  Mandatory provident fund scheme

The Group has established mandatory provident fund scheme
(“MPF scheme”) in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF scheme
are held in separate trustee-administered funds. Both the
Group and the employees are required to contribute 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a statutory maximum
requirement per employee per month. The Group’s contribution
to the MPF scheme is expensed as incurred.

The Education University of Hong Kong Financial Report 2018/2019
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #4855 - BTB £ BB BE)

1

1.14

1.15

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group or the University has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value
of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Income recognition

Income is classified by the Group when it arises from the provision of
services or the use by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Income is recognised when control over a product or service is
transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to use the

asset, at the amount of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties.

Further details of the Group’s income recognition policies are as
follows:

Recurrent subventions and grants are recognised as income over the
periods necessary to match them with the related costs which they
are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis, based on the
assumption that the conditions of the recurrent subventions can be
met.

Government subventions and grants, which are earmarked for specific
purposes, are initially recognised as deferred income when there is a
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attached to it and that the subventions will be received. They are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on a systematic
basis to match with the related costs for which they are intended to be
used.

Government subventions and grants, and donations with specific
purposes spent on capital expenditure are recorded as deferred capital
funds and are released and credited to the statement of comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
related assets when the assets are put in use, to the extent of the
related depreciation expense for that period.

1

1.14

1.15

Notes to the Financial Statements
g s ek

FEEHBORBIE (&)

BARNFER

IR B HHRAABE S HAREERIE
ERBMERRAESGHEENDERL - £
B REAT AR HAEEHZE
EEITEE - MREUFMEEEA - BES
AEITE ETRHIATR & HEREDIH -

IREE Rz AT ERUR - SR A S
EHSBELAISENMGE - BEEERRNE
BERE - BRIFCEF R A REIERE
ARSI - AIRERENERE (AFEEhER
—IHERZEAREMNE LR MEE) TR
H B BERE - BB L AT a1 1R
1K BUFERER

LN

AEEERBEBTRAREREREMAR
HETHEAAEEEERSREDBBEA

WAEAEEERAESERZORESTE (T
BREREE=ZARBHSE) £ RKBHEL
EHREEBEERR  AEREAGRERZE
ER TR -

AEEWAFERBERAFIEHIAT

REEBR MBS B E 2 BN AE R
ST RCY - RRAFENHARERABKA
W ARERAS F B 2 PAHT S BRI AT T A5 o

FrRliEE BB BT ES - EARREEENAIE
Ho PR AR & R AR T A MR {2 PR A FTURORES » &
BEAMRBRELERA - ZBERE2RRERT
SR HHE B 2 AR A B ac iR o

P B AN i 32 A9 BT 38 R AN B & A B 3R
FIREIEEARRES  WNEERALRE @ &
FEEENGEFIERFHNERERE 2R
Wk BEESAZMENEETEILR
PR -

31

EBHBKRE 2018/2019 BT &



THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &H##H B K2

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bx 5B #iB55) - BT £ BB BE )

1  Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.15 Income recognition [Continued)

Grants from government agencies for courses are recognised when
services are provided and complied with the conditions attached to it.
They are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income over
the duration of the related courses.

Tuition, programmes and other fees, and auxiliary services income are
recognised over the period of the courses or services to which they are
related.

Donations in cash and cash equivalents or other investment
instruments for general purposes are recognised as income at fair
values when it is probable that they will be received, which is generally
upon their receipt. Donations with specific purposes designated

by the donors are initially recognised as deferred income when
received, and then recognised as income to the extent of their related
expenditure incurred during the year.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest
method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis.

1.16 Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payment made under the leases are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative

basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged
to the statement of comprehensive income in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

1.17 Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group.
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THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG & ##A A2 B RSRE M S
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B &¢BH5) » Fre < BB BT )

1  Significant accounting policies [Continued] 1 EEESBREE (&)
1.17 Related parties [(Continued) 1.17 FABES (4)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions (Z2) WMFFETIEAGRY X BEER

applies: EEr T

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same group (—) ZEREAEEMEBER %2 (8]
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow ZERQTF - WEBARNMRRHEBA
subsidiary is related to the others). AR ILEE ) -

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (Z) " REBRS —EEMNBEAR
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a LEELE (An—HEEBTBE
group of which the other entity is a member). EETRERAANBEARHA

B -

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. (Z) MREBRA—ZF=FH&201

®,

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other (M) —RERRE=-FEBHNEGED
entity is an associate of the third entity. ¥ ME—BEBEE=-SEEN

/NI

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the () ZEBRAAEESIEAREE
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity AT TEERNESRMNM
related to the Group. REHBEB R R TR S -

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (N) ZEBEBXE JJ:L‘% (1) JERET
identified in (a). FRIE A TRl ok R o

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (£) £z (B) (—) BAMRE
over the entity or is a member of the key management ATHZERBEEATENNARE
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). ZER (ZEEYAAR)) BE

BEBAE -

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which itis a (N) ZEEfEFBEERNN TR
part, provides key management personnel services to the ERAEFERIEHTITESEASR
Group. % o

Close members of the family of a person are those family —
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced Al
by, that person in their dealings with the entity. K E

BEBHERE 2018/2019 i & 33



THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &#&#E K2
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bx 5B #iB55) - BT £ BB BE )

2  Financial risk and fund risk management 2 HHBEEREEEEE

2.1 Financial risk factors 21 HMBEBER
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: AEEMEHAZESETERR : THR
market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk % EERRERBEER - AEBERER
management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial R\ b B R Bl FE N S TS SR TR AN
markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's I = KA BRI B A & B B 75 R 3R A B A AR

financial performance. 7

(@)  Market risk () msRER
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (=) SNERE
The Group conducts its operation in Hong Kong with its REBEBTBLE MEAXSU
transactions denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”). BEREMN  AEEMEERA
The Group derives its operation income mainly in HKD. FEREBE c HRKIMBHEE
The Group’s foreign currency exposures arise mainly ERETHANEREENE 2
from and are substantially limited to the exchange rate BEHEAETREN - HAEE
movements between HKD and United States dollars INER R EZRE (IRAED
(“USD”) because most of the financial assets held under PRAY) B HETTHIERKE)

treasury investments and cash balances which are subject
to foreign exchange movements are denominated in USD.
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HEBEEREEEMESR (&)
MBEBER (4)

2 Financial risk and fund risk management (Continued] 2

2.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 21

(a) Market risk (Continued) (BR) mERK (&)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (—) SNERBR (&)
The following table details the Group’s and the TRAVAEERBANEEH
University’s major exposure at the end of the reporting NHBAERNINEEEUIINNE
period to currency risk arising from recognised assets WAtEMNEBRREEXRABMRE
or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the ENEFEEBEREERE - RAE
functional currency of the entity to which they relate. For PR - BB REESIREERRN
presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure are REEXRBE - WABEIIR -
shown in HKD, translated using the spot rate at the end of
the reporting period.
Group and University Z< £ @ & 5 X
United States Australian ~ Canadian Pounds Switzerland  European  Japanese
Dollars  Renminbi Dollars Dollars Sterling Franc Dollars Yen
ET AR% BT MEKRT e WA BT Bt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
Fir Fr Fr Fr Fir Fir Fr Fr
2019 —B-NE
Financial assets measured at R AT R
amortised cost TREE 31,383 = = = = = = -
Accounts receivable, deposits FEWERRK ~ e R
and prepayments TERFIE 9,608 - - - 16 - - -
Financial assets measured at BARBEFAERN
fair value through profit or loss TREE 349,868 - 2,929 5,855 943 - 15818 4,362
Bank deposits with original REEABEBB=EA
maturity over three months 2 TERBTERR 43,884 - = = = = - =
Cash and cash equivalents e MESEEY 24,908 - 8 20 - - 48 -
Accounts payable and accruals ~ FEfBRF FEAT A (1,178)  (773) 14) (640) an - 2 (73)
Net exposure arising from BEREREEMAEMEEN
recoghised assets and liabilities R\ R 458,473 (773) 2,923 5,235 948 - 15868 4,289
United States Australian  Canadian Pounds Switzerland  European  Japanese
Dollars  Renminbi Dollars Dollars Sterling Franc Dollars Yen
ET AR% BT MEAT g WA BT =
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr Fir Fir Fir Fir Fr Fr
2018 —E-N\F
Held-to-maturity financial assets ~ #H A2 2B S r &= 31,391 = = = = = = =
Accounts receivable, deposits JEUEER - e R
and prepayments SEINEE 5,181 - 319 - 41 1450 2,190 22
Financial assets measured at RARBEF B
fair value through profit or loss SREE 314,263 - 1,079 2,972 3,111 3,093 20,348 10,526
Bank deposits with original REEAEBB=EA
maturity over three months ZEEER 73,148 = = = = = = =
Cash and cash equivalents Re KRS EEY 17,144 17 1,072 710 - - 103 -
Accounts payable and accruals ~ FEERIK R EFTEIA (1,288) (286) (1,117) (731) (174) - (546) (76)
Net exposure arising from EREAEMBEMEEN
recognised assets and liabilities B AYEHEE 439,839 (269) 1,353 2,951 2,978 4543 22,095 10,472
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2 Financial risk and fund risk management (Continued]) 2

2.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 21
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)  Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change

in the Group’s and University’s surplus for the year and
funds that would arise if foreign exchange rates to which
the Group and the University have significant exposure at
the end of the reporting period had changed at that date,
assuming all other risk variables remained constant. In this
respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between HKD
and USD would be materially unaffected by any changes
in movement in value of USD against other currencies.
Other components of funds would not be affected by
changes in the foreign exchange rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as 2018.

MHHEERERESERER (F)
MBERBER (4)

(%)

(—)

SRR (&)

SMERE ()

TRIRAEERHANFE R
RESAEAEEMAXERER
MEXNEER 2B (RERME
Hib BB T2 i BIR
BHEML - St E - AEEERR
T HEMEENEAEEZESN
NE AT IR TR B RE KB
BEANFE - RePEMARED

BAEXEBNEZTLHNTE - %D
R —F— \FRRMNEEME
HEy o

Group and University <& @R KX

2019

Increase/(decrease) in Effect on surplus
foreign exchange rates and funds

fEE HBERKES

EFH(TBE) 52

$'000

Tt
Renminbi AR 5% (39)
(5)% 39

Australian Dollars SRIT 5% 146
(5)% (146)

Canadian Dollars IEXTT 5% 262
(5)% (262)

Pounds Sterling 7 5% 47
(5)% 47)

Switzerland Franc I IAER 5% -

(5)%

European Dollars BT 5% 793
(5)% (793)

Japanese Yen = 5% 214
(5)% (214)
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2018
Increase/(decrease) in Effect on surplus
foreign exchange rates and funds
[ & HEKRKES
EFI(TEE) )%
$'000
Tt

5% (13)
(5)% 13

5% 68

(5)% (68)
5% 148

(5)% (148)
5% 149

(5)% (149)
5% 227
(5)% (227)
5% 1,105
(5)% (1,105)
5% 524
(5)% (524)
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2  Financial risk and fund risk management [Continued) 2 WHERRESEAKRER (4)

2.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 21 WHBEBEZR (48)
(a) Market risk (Continued) () mizRk (&)

(i)

(iii)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from the
interest-bearing financial assets held under treasury
investments, which are reviewed on a regular basis in
accordance with the Group’s policies and guidelines.

Based on the sensitivity analysis performed at 30 June
2019, if interest rates on variable rate interest-bearing
bank deposits had been 50 basis points higher or 25 basis
points lower with all other variables held constant, surplus
for the year would have been $688,000 higher (2018:
$856,000 higher) or $171,000 lower (2018: $138,000
lower) respectively, as a result of higher/lower interest
income on bank deposits.

Price risk

Price risk refers to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss. The Group is not
exposed to commodity price risk. The equity price risk

of the investment is managed by reputable professional
investment managers through their in-house risk
management, risk analytical systems and on-going
monitoring controls. In addition, the investment managers
follow the Group’s investment guidelines to diversify the
equity price risk in different geographical locations and
industry segments. The Group also monitors the risk
exposure by carrying out appropriate assessments on the
investment strategies and reviews on periodic reports from
the investment managers from time to time.

(=)

F 2R

MEREBREESBRIANDARE
EARRERREGREHHHE
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2  Financial risk and fund risk management (Continued) 2 WMHEBRESEKRERE (4)

2.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 21 HMBEBEEERE (£)
(a) Market risk (Continued) () misREE (&
(iii)  Price risk (Continued) (=) EREE (&)
As at 30 June 2019, the carrying amounts of equity RZZE—NAFXA=+H A&
investments classified as financial assets at fair value B AR BEAABRNRER
through profit or loss held by the Group in different regions AREEER GRS D ED
are analysed and are listed in the following tables: M- WHIRT -

Group and University 2~ @ & 5K

2019 2018
$'000 $'000
T T
United States e 25,218 17,023
Europe B 71,538 73,458
Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong and Japan K& BB &B ARSI 4,577 2,760
Japan HZx - 5,307
Hong Kong a5 14,336 15,183
Others HAtb - 1,686
Total wazE 115,669 115,417
As the end of the reporting period, if the prices of the REEH  EREOER AT
respective equity investments had been 5% higher/lower, PR5% - L EH A — YA B A R4
with all other variables held constant, the Group’s surplus BAZNEAT BZFENRA
for the year would have been increased/decreased by BRI IN/R2>5,783,0007T (2018
$5,783,000 (2018: $5,771,000). # :5771,000) °
(b)  Credit risk (2) EERRE
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its FERBERUFIERGHNEEME
contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group. HAREEELMBEE 2R
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its deposits AEBOEERREZREHFRER
and cash at banks, accounts receivable, contract assets and TR EBURER AREELRS K
investment balances with financial institutions. There are BORESES - AEERBRERFBE
procedures in place to mitigate the risk and the exposures to RRE  MEBBTERHETIERE
these credit risks are monitored closely by the management on BB e o

an ongoing basis.

38 The Education University of Hong Kong Financial Report 2018/2019



THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &#&#HE K2
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #4855 - BTB £ BB BE)

2 BEBRERESERER (8)
21 UHBEBEE (48)

2 Financial risk and fund risk management (Continued)

2.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts receivable in respect of tuition fees are receivable
by due dates preset every year according to the academic
calendar. The Group has a policy of withholding the issue of
academic documents to students to enhance the quality of
accounts receivable. The credit risk in investment balances
with financial institutions and deposits and cash at banks
are considered limited and expected credit loss is immaterial
because the counterparties are mainly banks and financial
institutions with high credit-ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies. For banks and financial institutions,
only independently rated parties with a minimum Moody’s
rating of “A” are accepted. The University has no significant
concentration of credit risk and the risk exposure is diversified
over a large number of counterparties. The University has
policies that limit the amount of credit exposure to any single
financial institution.

The Group measures loss allowances for accounts receivable
and contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs as set
out in Note 1.7(a).

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements regularly to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available to

meet liabilities as and when they fall due, and it results from
mismatch of assets and liabilities. The Group performs regular
projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk to ensure
that all liabilities due and known funding requirements could be
met. Prudent liquidity management also includes maintaining
adequate credit facilities in the Group’s approved banks.

(Z)

Notes to the Financial Statements
g s ek

EERR (&

ERSENREYRIRERERESF
FRIERR M EI I A ATHCER - RNEE T HIE
B - REERERN - PIERREL
EMBEFAXME - DR IR E FE
RIRH R - EERRIBNREGEHRMN
RITEROEERRTIK  BRELE
NEIERBEARBREEFARERTS
EEFMBRNRTMSBME  AEEA
BEXARBBINRTKEREERR
Al FHERMIRITH S R - BRY
BEAGRESTHAR - MEBREET
HEERDBT ZETBEEE - THBE
PR Bl ) B8 — RA A B A 77 50 &AL
ERAZEHIEERE

AEBHEUERMENEEBERMHE
BEtE - BERWEL7 (F) BRED
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mENE DA kR

7o G B RS AR B AT B
BESHEF  URRAEERAELH
ReRERNEESNERSRDES
E P
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2  Financial risk and fund risk management (Continued) 2

2.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s and the University’s

financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on

the remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the

contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table

are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balance for

accounts payable and accruals due within 12 months equal

their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not

significant.

At 30 June 2019

Accounts payable, accruals
and others

At 30 June 2018

Accounts payable, accruals
and others

At 30 June 2019

Accounts payable, accruals
and others

At 30 June 2018

Accounts payable, accruals
and others

R-B-AFAA=TAH

FEAIRRIR ~ FERTRIA )
Hity

R=Z—NFXA=1H

FERTRRAR - FERHRIA R
HAl

R=B-AFAA=1H

FEM AR - FEAHRIE R
Hft

RZZB-N\FARA=+H

FERTBRAR - BT RIA R
HoA

HHEEREEEMEER (&)

21 BBBEBEE (8)

(R) nBEeRR (&)
TRA/ATEERBARONVBABRER
HZEA A SE B 89T &R B #4878 2 58
BRADHT - UTHRBEOHE RS LR
WRINEME - HRARNTEEN - K
TE1218 A A 2 ER 6 FE 5 BR FR AN FE 55K IR
MHENERmE -
Group Z&%£MH
Over 3 Over 1 year
months but but within 2
Within 3 within 1 year years Over
months  2i@3E AR HBIR1F 2 years Total
3MEASAT 1F A B2FER 2F Ak Rk
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt T Tt Tt T
139,108 7,635 250 100 147,093
148,741 3,938 450 200 153,329
University # X
Over 3 Over 1 year
months but but within 2
Within 3 within 1 year years Over
months  FBiE3MEAE BB 2 years Total
3MEASAT 1F R [EVESIN 2F Ak 4
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Fit T Tt Fit
127,611 7,635 250 100 135,596
140,746 3,938 450 200 145,334
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2 WMHEBRESEREER (4)

2  Financial risk and fund risk management (Continued)

2.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)  Fair values measurement

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s and the
University’s financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement

is classified, is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are
not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

21 UHEEBEE (48)
(T) AnEHE:dFS

TREINAREMERIRA

D]]

EEBRRAR

BEFENTRMIE - TR (FEUH

HEEL) B35~ T

AR EEZE

B AIRENAABERRINER =M
Rl - R EEABRZ2EMEIER

BANBBENABEEERER

NEFERR - WHMT :

- ERHE: BERRE
TRIAENDIARE
KAEREEXAGES

BRI -

|E ﬁlﬁ paN *E

— R A
B Et £ B
RIGRE™ S

- FE_RMEE: ERE_HBAT
EHENARE  AHESE
AR HREREE—RNE
R BB IBREARTAIHEDN
BATLE - TABERBATER
BEHSEENBATE -

- E=RMHE: ERERTATER
BATLEFENAARE -

Fair value measurements A A EEE

Group and University 25 @R K

2019 2018
Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
—EBR EZEM F=ER B EER FER FZER k)
$ 000 $'000  $'000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fir Fit Fir Fr Fit Fit Fir
Investment: "E -
- Investments in institutional entities - RREBHERIRE - - 8,244 8,244 = = = =
Financial assets measured at fair value R AR BET ABZR
through profit or loss: HEREE:
- Fixed income securities - EEWAEH 280,088 - - 280,088 256,838 - - 256,838
- Equities - IRE 115,669 - - 115,669 115417 - - 115417
- Investment in unlisted unit trust - LT EN
EERE - 1,272 - 1,272 - 1,312 - 1,312
395,757 1,272 8,244 405,273 372,255 1,312 - 373,567

During the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2019, there were
no transfers between instruments in Level 1 and Level 2,

or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur.

BE_Z-AR-Z-N\FERA=+H
LHFER AEEYESRTAEAR
BEF-BE_ER2EELES %
FZMBAREL - AEENHBER
RBEEBRZHHREB RS HE

N
HAMREHED -

EBHBKRE 2018/2019 BT &
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2

2.

2.

42

Financial risk and fund risk management [Continued)

1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Fair values measurement (Continued)

The fair value of investment in unlisted unit trust in Level 2 is
determined by the number of unit trust held by the Group times
its indicative market value as at the end of the reporting period.

The fair value of investment in insitutional entities in Level 3

is determined by the percentage of interest held by the Group
times the net assets of the entities. The significant unobservable
input includes the attributable net asset values and the fair value
increases with the increase in the attributable net asset values.

The movement during the peroid in the balance of these Level 3
fair value measurements is as follows:

Balance at 1 July 2017 and 30 June 2018

Impact on initial application of HKFRS 9 IR AR AV B REERIESRNTE

RoB—/\ELA—ABERRS
FARRNARRTIS

REE-NFRA=THBER

Adjusted balance at 1 July 2018
Unrealised gain for the year

Balance at 30 June 2019

The gains arising from the fair value remeasurements in Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy are recognised in the statements of
comprehensive income for both the Group and the University.

2 Fund risk management

The University is a government subvented education institution
established under the laws of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“HKSAR"), which main objectives are to provide studies
and training in teacher education and facilities for research into and
the development of education. The University is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements, except as stated in Note
16, and its activities are mainly funded by government grants and
tuition fees, the spending of which is governed by the UGC Notes on
Procedures and other grant conditions. The University’s activities are
also funded by donations and funds generated from self-financing
activities.

The various restricted and other funds represent the unspent balance
of such grants, income, donations and other specific purpose funds.
These funds are managed according to the relevant grant and funding
conditions, where applicable, and the University’s investment and
financial management guidelines and procedures with the view of
meeting the objectives of the University.

The Education University of Hong Kong Financial Report 2018/2019
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2

2.2

2.3

3.

Financial risk and fund risk management [Continued) 2

Fund risk management (Continued)

None of the University’s subsidiaries are subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements and their capital management policies
are governed by their own financial management guidelines and
procedures with the view of safeguarding the subsidiaries’ ability to
continue as a going concern.

Fair value estimation

The carrying values less impairment provision of receivables and
payables are a reasonable approximation of their fair values. The
fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 BLEMGER (8)

2.3 AREEMSE

instruments, unless the effect of discounting will be immaterial.

Property, plant and equipment

Cost:

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 July 2017
Additions
Transfers
Disposals

At 30 June 2018 and
at 1 July 2018

Additions

Transfers

Disposals

At 30 June 2019

At 1 July 2017
Charge for the year
Written back on disposal

At 30 June 2018 and
at 1 July 2018

Charge for the year

Written back on disposal

At 30 June 2019

Net book value:

At 30 June 2019

At 30 June 2018

B
R=—Z—tFtHA—H
e

L83

BE

R=ZZB-N\FARA=+H
kR=—2-N\FtA—H

e

B

RE

R=ZB-AFAA=TAH

REHTE

R=Z2—tFtA—H
RERHFE
BRERREM

R=2B-N\FARA=1AH
R=ZF-NEtHA—8

REFHE

=k 3z 4E

R=ZB-AFXA=T+H

BREFE :

RZZE—AFRA=+H

RZZE—N\FA=+H

FEAMEEE

o

3 PE - HBRR

Group F&E

PR SRR M

HEERERESEREER (4)

BREMB LRI EAETINET LN ERE
AT REAEEBRAEAGNHMHKER
EaIMIEFMARE -
# o

BEBELEHRE

JRE W2 BR S5 D AT BR SR A BR TED (B HIRR R (B 348

HENREERD - MBEENAAEE (3
BEAH) BAKGHASREBUNAEEHAU
SR TARSNRATSMERERMETT (RIF
SRR EER)

Leasehold Fixtures and Construction

Buildings improvements  equipment in progress Total

BT MEMERE KERREH ERIRR G

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

T T Tt T T

2,384,052 386,937 378,622 22,381 3,171,992

- 25,183 17,930 51,006 94,119

- 34,663 685 (35,348) =

- - (7,892) = (7,892)

2,384,052 446,783 389,345 38,039 3,258,219

- 36,843 39,192 33,124 109,159

- 44,362 19,478 (63,840) =

= (27) (8,737) = (8,764)

2,384,052 527,961 439,278 7,323 3,358,614

796,584 219,668 303,013 - 1,319,265

47,675 48,521 28,649 - 124,845

= = (7,892) = (7,892)

844,259 268,189 323,770 - 1,436,218

47,675 53,932 27,958 - 129,565

= (24) (8,700) = (8,724)

891,934 322,097 343,028 - 1,557,059

1,492,118 205,864 96,250 7,323 1,801,555

1,539,793 178,594 65,575 38,039 1,822,001
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3.

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Cost:

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 July 2017
Additions
Transfers
Disposals

At 30 June 2018 and
at 1 July 2018

Additions

Transfers

Disposals

At 30 June 2019

At 1 July 2017
Charge for the year
Written back on disposal

At 30 June 2018 and
at 1 July 2018

Charge for the year

Written back on disposal

At 30 June 2019

Net book value:

44

At 30 June 2019

At 30 June 2018

AR
R=—Z—tEtA—H
HE
R
BE

R=B—N\FXA=+H

kR=Z2—-N\FtHA—H

HE
B
BE

R=-Z—hEARA=+H

R
R-Z—tFtHA—H
NEEINE
BB %R

R-Z—NFXA=1H

kR=Z2-NFtHA—H

REZHE
FRE &R

R=-ZE—hFARA=+AH

AREFE

RZZE—AFA=+H

RZZ—N\FXRA=+H

3

Leasehold Fixtures and

M - B RRE (B)

University # X

Construction

Buildings improvements  equipment in progress Total
BF HEMERE XKBIRRE TEEILRE “aE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FT T T T T+t
2,380,288 379,720 370,219 22,381 3,152,608
- 24,174 16,054 51,006 91,234

- 34,663 685 (35,348) =

- - (7,888) = (7,888)
2,380,288 438,557 379,070 38,039 3,235,954
- 35,615 38,800 33,124 107,539

- 44,362 19,478 (63,840) -

- - (8,542) = (8,542)
2,380,288 518,534 428,806 7,323 3,334,951
795,323 215,744 295,048 - 1,306,115
47,602 47,500 27,767 - 122,869

- - (7,888) = (7,888)
842,925 263,244 314,927 - 1,421,096
47,602 52,794 27,119 - 127,515

= = (8,515) = (8,515)
890,527 316,038 333,531 - 1,540,096
1,489,761 202,496 95,275 7,323 1,794,855
1,537,363 175,313 64,143 38,039 1,814,858
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4 Investments 4

Group "&EE

Notes to the Financial Statements
g s ek

RE

University X

30 June 1July 30 June 30 June 1July 30 June
NA=+H +tA—H R~A=tH KA=t+H +tA—H K<A=1+H
2019 2018 2018 2019 2018 2018
Note $’000 $'000 $'000 $’000 $'000 $'000
HizF Fr T T Fr T T
Investments in institutional entities  RBHEENIRE (@ () 8,244 6,927 1 8,244 6,927 1
Investments in subsidiaries RHE A RRIRE (b) (Z2) - > =
8,244 6,927 1
(a) Investments in institutional entities (F)  RUEBHENRE
Particulars of
Place of Issued and
Incorporation Paid Up Capital Held by
Name of institutional entities and Operation BEITR University Principal Activity
BB R S R S kb B B RANGEE HAEE FEXEH
Joint Universities Computer Centre Limited Hong Kong 8 Shares 12.5% Information Technology
REBESERBOBRAA &5 8h% Services
= BB AR
Joint University Programmes Admissions System Hong Kong Limited by 12.5% Coordination and
REBMERER B guarantee control of the Joint
ERERAR] Admissions System
HAREENLEHE
BESE
JULAC Joint Universities Research Archive Limited Hong Kong Limited by 12.5% Functional storage
AEHE MBI EEFR AR B guarantee facility for research and
ERER AT archival purposes
HIFBEMERE
The University Sports Federation of Hong Kong, Hong Kong Limited by 9.1% Organising sports games
China Limited B guarantee and competitions
HEESAEREHEERAR EREBR AT BIEER EB ML E

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, an opening adjustment as at 1 July 2018
was made to measure the investments in institutional entities at fair value
(see Note 1.3(a)(i)).

Investments in subsidiaries

The University has a 100% (2018: 100%) interest, without investment cost,
in The EAUHK Schools Limited which was incorporated in Hong Kong on 14
December 1998 as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the
company is to plan, establish and manage schools.

The University has a 100% (2018: 100%) interest, without investment cost,
in The EAUHK School of Continuing and Professional Education Limited
(“EdUHK SCPE") which was incorporated in Hong Kong on 28 June 2006 as
a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the company is to set up,
maintain and operate, in conjunction with the University for the promotion
and advancement of professional, technical and continuing education, foster
and provide courses leading to awards as well as courses of general interest,
and where appropriate, provide learning opportunities in or outside Hong
Kong. The EAUHK SCPE has assumed the responsibilities and mission of the
Division of Continuing Professional Education of the University since 1 July
2006.

The results of these subsidiaries are accounted for in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

EBHBKRE 2018/2019 BT &

RABEBHBREEMFORE N-F—/\FLA
—HETHVIAE  UAR EEFEREEREN
RE (2R3 (F) (5) -

RIBERREIRE
HAFKEBBABARENBERBRARZ100%
(ZF—N\F:100%) #zE CRBRERA) <t
REAR—NNNF+=A+HBEEEZMK LR
—HERBERAR HENAEE BUNERSR
e
HRNBEBEBRBEARERBESTEHUFERE
RAR ([FHEHRFBB]) 2100% (ZF—N
F:100%) s ORERERA) - WARR=E
TREAASTNBERBEMRLA—BERE
RAF HKZBNREBAHFAERRREE R
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5 Held-to-maturity financial assets and financial assets 5
measured at amortised cost

FAZIN 0 EMEERITEHRE
STEMNSRMEE

Group and University Z"&E@E R H A

30 June 1 July 30 June
ANA=t+H +A—H ~NA=18
2019 2018 2018
Note $'000 $'000 $'000
Kt T Tt Tt
Held-to-maturity financial assets BEZIEERERE = = 40,563
Financial assets measured REHEKATENSREE (a) (F) 40,546 40,563 -
at amortised cost
Less: Current portion classified as B RBED R AREEE (31,383) - -
current assets
9,163 40,563 40,563
(a) Held-to-maturity financial assets were reclassified as financial assets () HAEZIHASREER_Z—)/\FtA—AW
measured at amortised cost upon the initial application if HKFRS 9 at 1 July REBEBVBMELFEORE - WEHHSER
2018 (see note 1.3(a)(i)). REBHERATENSREE (2BME1.3 (F)
(=)) -
6 Bank deposits with original maturity over three 6 RIYABB=EAZEHER
months
Group A"&EH University Ak
2019 2018 2019 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr FT Fr FT
Bank deposits with original RE|HI B AR B3ME A K
maturity over 3 months TEHFR
Current portion BB
- Unpledged - RYEHEIR 870,681 809,451 852,998 792,051
- Pledged - BEER 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000
876,681 815,451 858,998 798,051

The effective interest rate on bank deposits with original maturity over
3 months was 2.56% (2018: 1.66%) per annum. These deposits
have a weighted average maturity of 128 days (2018: 121 days).

The pledged bank deposits of $6,000,000 (2018: $6,000,000) are
used as securities for the Group’s and the University’s bank overdraft
facilities which have not been utilised for the years ended 30 June
2019 and 2018.

46 The Education University of Hong Kong Financial Report 2018/2019

FEHABB-MANTHFERANEERNES
2.56% (ZZ—)\F : 1.66%) : HEHFERH
IEFHBEE A1288 (22— /\F : 121
H) -

EHF 6,000,000 (ZZFE—\F
6,000,0007T) AEREERHAREE T —
NERZE—N\FNA=ZTHILEMHBFEHE
B RRITIE L BAIEHR



THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &#&#HE K2
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #4855 - BTB £ BB BE)

7 Contract assets and contract liabilities 7

Notes to the Financial Statements

BHEENESHAR

Group #&EE Univers

30 June 1 July
RA=tH +A—H

30 June 30 June 1J

PR SRR M

ity #K
uly  30June

AA=tH KRA=tH L£HA—H RA=1AH
2018 2019 2018 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

T Fr T T
= 16,074 9,469 =
- 67,922 58,002 =

2019 2018

Note $’000 $'000

Kt Fr Tt

Contract assets ABREE (@) () 16,074 9,469

Contract liabilities AHasE (b) (Z2) 69,534 59,470
(a)  Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, some of the accounts G

receivable, for which the Group’s entitlement to the
consideration relating to contracts provision for courses and
services was conditional on achieving certain milestones, were
reclassified from “Accounts receivable” under “Accounts
receivable, deposits and prepayments” (Note 8) to contract
assets (see Note 1.3(b)(i)).

(b)  Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, some of the amounts relating (2)
to tuition and hostels fees received in advance previously
included as “Receipts in advance” under “Accounts payable
and accruals” (Note 11) were reclassified to contract liabilities
(see Note 1.3(b)(ii)).

(c)  Movement in contract liabilities

Balance at 1 July 2018 R-ZB-—NFLtH—BHN&E
Decrease in contract liabilities as FFAFMENABELT
a result of recognising income during BRI

the year that was included in the
contract liabilities at the beginning
of the period

Increase in contract liabilities as FERFEERENEE
a result of receipts in advance Y38 N
Balance at 30 June 2019 R-B—hEXB=THWEEH

RABBYBREERE 1551 - BLHOAEE

REREMIRS A RS MK
FRERE TERB T IEED

HARERHERZA
[ U R R

B [RUERR - e RIERNFOR] B (25K

iH8) B HEAANEE (2
(=)) »

RRABBEUBRE
BRERBEENE

BIMEE1.3 (2)

HERE1BHRIKL - Ao AEBR
& [1ElEoE ]

B TE

MEEFEEERIE] B (2HMEN) EFOE
EEHEE (2R3 (2) (Z)) -

AENaEED

Group A&EE

$'000
T

59,470

(47,789)

57,853

69,534

EBHBKRE 2018/2019 BT &

University # X

$'000
T

58,002

(46,321)

56,241

67,922
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8

Accounts receivable, deposits and prepayments 8 FEWARR - RERFEFRIE
Group A% H University X
30 June 1July 30 June 30 June 1July 30 June
NA=tH +A—H ~A=+H KRBA=1+H +tA—H ~A=tH
2019 2018 2018 2019 2018 2018
Note $’000 $'000 $'000 $’000 $'000 $'000
Kzt Fx Fit Fit Fx Fit T
Accounts receivable, net of FEURERFR « JBLR

allowance for doubtful debts BRI TR (@ (F) 97,529 70,100 78,647 97,448 70,032 78,579
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUH B A Rl FIE (b) (Z) - - - 26 - -

Balances held at the investment RIEE LR NTFR
managers FARE (c) (A) 9,640 12,253 12,253 9,640 12,253 12,253
Security deposits RBIES 4,596 3,062 3,062 4,580 3,030 3,030
111,765 85,415 93,962 111,694 85,315 93,862
Prepayments T FRIE 6,625 7,901 7,901 6,330 7,711 7,711
118,390 93,316 101,863 118,024 93,026 101,573

The amount of security deposits expected to be recovered or
recognised as expense after more than one year is $4,121,000
(2018: $2,637,000). All of other accounts receivable, deposits and
prepayments are expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses
within one year.

fAEt—F A LRI ER S EANRERSH
©F/4,121,000T (ZZF—/\F : 2,637,000
) o HtEUER - REMENFARSS
FE—F 2 AREISHER A

=
(a)  Accounts receivable (FF)  FEMRR
. . —F — S H = , ==
As at 30 June 2019, the Group’s and the University’s accounts - NEARA=ZTR  ARER
vl F 48 ol E=
receivable of $13,417,000 (2018: $4,296,000) was past due HUOA 0 B 30 318 I 5L 18 A B LB
but not impaired. These mainly relate to a wide range of debtors 13,417,0007C (=% —/\% : 4,296,000
— o S EL - M SRyl
for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing L) WERATRGRETSHHR
S 2 bl ) ST (2 o |H e
analysis of accounts receivable is as follows: EREEE BT ABA © UL F BRI
HRRE DTN
Group A& H University X
2019 2018 2019 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr FT Fr T
Not past due AR HA 84,112 74,351 84,031 74,283
Past due by: B :
Within 3 months 3MEAZIAT 2,936 3,533 2,936 3,533
Over 3 months but within 6 months HBE31E AE6EA R 6,275 350 6,275 350
Over 6 months but within 12 months HBiae6(E AE12@ AR 4,120 278 4,120 278
Over 12 months Bi@1218 A 86 135 86 135
13,417 4,296 13,417 4,296
97,529 78,647 97,448 78,579

48

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, an opening adjustment of $922,000
as at 1 July 2018 was made to derecognise expected credit losses on
accounts receivable (see Note 1.3(a)(ii)).

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, some of the accounts receivable, for
which the Group’s entitlement to the consideration relating to contracts
provision for courses and services was conditional on achieving certain
milestones, were reclassified to “contract assets” and disclosed in
Note 7 (see Note 1.3(b)(i)).

The Education University of Hong Kong Financial Report 2018/2019
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8

Accounts receivable, deposits and prepayments
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Amounts due from subsidiaries

The amounts are unsecured and recoverable within 30 days.

If balance is overdue, interest will be charged at monthly
savings account interest rate quoted by bank. At the end of the
reporting period, none of the amounts due from subsidiaries was
overdue.

Balances held at the investment managers

The balances represent cash held temporarily at the external
investment managers for investment decision in-between.

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit
or loss

Fixed income securities B WA ES

Equities

e

- Listed in Hong Kong -ERB LN
- Listed outside Hong Kong - EEBASN LT

Investment in unlisted unit trust, at fair FELEMEMETERE RAAEE)

Note:

As at 30 June 2019, the University invests in two investment
portfolios managed by investment managers. The University has
delegated the authority of making investment decision, within
the investment mandate stipulated by the University, to the
investment managers to manage the discretionary investment
portfolios created for the University. The breakdown of the
investment portfolios are included in the list above.

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in interest and net investment income
in the statement of comprehensive income (Note 23).

As at 30 June 2019, there are cash balances held in the two
investment portfolios by the University for investment decision
in-between and its details are disclosed in Note 8(c).

8

9

Notes to the Financial Statements
g s ek

FEWERSR « e RFARRIE (&)

(2) KB RRNFIR

ST R R A R ANS0H AE
B MBEBRRES  ZRBEERRTE
AREFERNEAENE - REFEAL
AR B A B ROA

() NRELENOFRERE

LRI ERERRMITZME - B
RN ERIERRS -

RARBETAERHSRMEE

Group and University 2@ Rk

2019 2018
$'000 $'000
Fr FIT
280,088 256,838
14,336 15,183
101,333 100,234
115,669 115,417
1,272 1,312
397,029 373,567

MI5E - M2019F6 A30H @ AR B M EHRR
EEBEENKRERS - HADE2EE
ARERBEHARENRERERE
NEERZKRERS MHBREREK - &
EHEANFANEEBRE LEMIIK
H o

ae N

BAnBEFABENEREENAR
EBEEZHE2EAKGERTLERNER
wE T (PFE23) -

M2019%F6 A30H * HAEMEZEHR
AHREHAEAREENIRSHE  FEBR
fisEs (A) o

EBHBKRE 2018/2019 BT & 49
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10 Cash and cash equivalents 10 WRERFEZFEY

Group A%£ME University Ak
2019 2018 2019 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fx Fit Frx Fit
Cash at banks and in hand IRITEEBR RIS 137,618 171,105 131,894 164,465
Short-term bank deposits KEHATE IR 328,398 389,846 314,086 380,124
466,016 560,951 445,980 544 589

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 2.33%
(2018: 1.72%) per annum. These deposits have a weighted average
maturity of 41 days (2018: 45 days).

CHERNERERNERE2.33% (ZF—AN
F1.72%) - WEFROMEFHSEBHA A
4B (ZZ—\F :45H) -

11 Accounts payable and accruals 11 FERBRFR R FESTFRIE
Group A&£ME University kX

30 June 1 July
AA=t+H +tA—H

30 June 30 June 1 July 30 June
ANA=TH XRA=+H tA—B XA=+H

2018 2019 2018 2018
$000 $°000  $'000 $000
T7T Fr Tt TT
87,206 91,426 78586 78,586
63,295 40,423 63,209 63,209
2,828 2,932 2,828 2,828
= 815 711 711

2019 2018

$'000 $'000

Frx T

Accounts payable FERTARFR 103,649 87,206
Accruals FERTHIE 40,512 63,295
Other deposits Hiniz s 2,932 2,828
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATH B A R FIE - -
147,093 153,329

Receipts in advance FEUFRIE 19,130 5,446

153,329 135,596 145334 145334

64,916 19,119 5435 63,437

166,223 158,775

218,245 154,715 150,769 208,771

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15, some receipts in advance are
included in contract liabilities and disclosed in Note 7 (see Note 1.3(b)
(ii)).

The Group and the University settle the accounts payable according to
payment due date. For remaining contractual maturities of accounts
payable, please refer to Note 2.1(c).

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of accounts payable
and accruals approximate their fair values as at 30 June 2019 and
2018.
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12 Provision for employee benefits

Staff costs
Unutilised annual leave and others
Gratuities
Long service payment

Payable
Within 1 year
After 1 year

13 Deferred income

Balance at 1 July 2018/2017

Subventions, grants and donations
received/receivable

Recognised during the year

Transfer to deferred capital funds

Balance at 30 June 2019/2018

REE R S HoAl
HiwmiE
EHR%GE

e R

—tg

Note
Bt
R-B-NF/I=ZT—tF
+tA—BN&ER
BR/EROHEE
REE AR
HERRRETEARES 14

R-B—AF/I=Z—-N\F
NAZTENER

Notes to the Financial Statements

12 EEEAIBE

Group Z&H

PR SRR M

University A

2019 2018 2019 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fit FiT Fi FiT
85,661 78,736 85,661 78,736
42,828 37,110 42,828 37,110
545 500 329 309
129,034 116,346 128,818 116,155
113,871 103,371 113,655 103,180
15,163 12,975 15,163 12,975
129,034 116,346 128,818 116,155
13 BREUA

Group A&E University X
2019 2018 2019 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fi FiT Fi FiT
323,609 305,442 323,256 305,412
1,129,470 1,129,185 1,093,486 1,096,690
(1,032,348) (1,019,516) (997,440)  (989,270)
(107,757) (91,502) (106,668) (89,576)
312,974 323,609 312,634 323,256

EBHEAE 201820198135 b DI
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13 Deferred income (Continued) 13 BEKAN (8)

Group A&£H University Xk

2019 2018 2019 2018
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
B Frx F Fr T
Balance representing: ERBIE
University HKR
Earmarked Grants HEEB K
- Research - ift5e 17,488 18,810 17,488 18,810
- Immersion - TR 27,805 27,550 27,805 27,550
- Home Financing Scheme - BF&BhETE 83,583 83,998 83,583 83,998
- Housing-related benefits other than - JEEFTEBIETEIZ
Home Financing Scheme FEERMEES S 42,861 40,160 42,861 40,160
- Others - Efth 29,058 34,563 29,058 34,563
Capital Grants and Alterations, BB RS -
Additions, Repairs and g - KEERE
Improvements Block Allocation TiEREhcER 36,491 27,115 36,491 27,115
Donations with designated purposes BREER®BZEBR (a) (FF) 64,386 82,135 64,386 82,135
Grants from government and TR R EL At A 1 K
other agencies (b) (2) 10,962 8,925 10,962 8,925
312,634 323,256 312,634 323,256
Subsidiary Ff B A =
Earmarked Grants HEEB K
- Others - HAth 340 353 - -
312,974 323,609 312,634 323,256
(a) Grants received are initially recorded in deferred income under donations () WENBRNEEANECWAREREREZE

52

with designated purposes and then recognised as income to the extent of
their respective expenditures. The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust
(“the Trust”) approved funding of $62,518,000 for the project “CoolThink@
JC-Computational Thinking Education (“CoolThink@JC”)”, $31,880,000
for the project “C-for-Chinese@JC”, $16,500,000 for the project “Jockey
Club From Words to Culture Programme: An Animated Way to Learn
Chinese (“Programme”)” and $4,870,000 for the project “Jockey Club
Experiential Learning Project for Students with Special Educational Needs
(“SENSs Project”)”. Included in donations with designated purposes,

the Group received grants from the Trust in an accumulated amount of
$21,691,000 (2018: $4,046,000) for the project CoolThink@JC, $2,225,000
(2018: $2,225,000) for the project C-for-Chinese@JC, $2,932,000 (2018:
$1,375,000) for the Programme and $405,000 (2018: Nil) for the project
SENSs Project. Except SENs Project with unutilised balance of $233,000
(2018: Nil), which is included in the year end balance, there was no
unutilised balance as at 30 June 2019 (2018: Nil) for these projects.
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7T~ 16,500,0007T %4,870,0007 ° A &£ EHEH
BHETE - RBEHE - 8 (X RETERERE
ZEET DRI R E S RIER 21,691,000
(== —/\% : 4,046,0007T) - 2,225,0007T (=
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13 Deferred income (Continued)

(b) Balance of grants from government and other agencies includes the
unspent balances of the following funding:

(i)

(i)

Balance at 1 July 2018/2017

Income

Grants received
Interest/investment income

Expenditure

Programme costs

Balance at 30 June 2019/2018

(iii)

Balance at 1 July 2018/2017

Income

Grants received/(refunded)
Interest/investment income

Expenditure

Programme costs

Balance at 30 June 2019/2018

The unspent balance of matching grants under the Pilot Scheme to
subsidise post-secondary students for Mainland China experience and
its details are disclosed in Note 21(b).

Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange for Post-secondary Students (“the
SSE”)

The Education Bureau ("EDB") of HKSAR Government has started
the SSE since 2014/15 to subsidise financially needy students
participating in exchange programmes. The University has duly
complied with the terms and conditions for the use of funding under
the SSE as set out in the Operating Guide. The funfing received and
the expenditure of the SSE and the unspent balance are disclosed as
follows:

REB-NF/=2—LtF

tA-BW&ET
LAUN
BRI

GNP s S vE T 6

X
BB

R-B-NEF/I=B-N\F
NA=ZTRNER

Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange to Belt and Road Regions for Post-
secondary Students (“the SSEBR”)

In 2015/16, the EDB has started the SSEBR to subsidise financially
needy students participating in exchange activities held in the Belt
and Road Region. The University has duly complied with the terms
and conditions for the use of funding under SSEBR as set out in the
Operating Guide. The funding received and the expenditure of the
SSEBR and the unspent balance are disclosed as follows:

R-ZB—NF/I=F—tF
+tA—HHEE

g
B/ GRIE) fBh&
B RIBE F s

b
EBEM

R-B-NEF/I=B-N\F
ANAZTHNERE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

EEWA

PR SRR M

(48)

() BRREMEEEFSETIIMNE

FLEENBEBRESHB R HHE
REGFDHIINME21 (2) -

HEEABINRE BT E

ERENTHRRHEER ( [#ER] ) ¥
—E-W/-hFEERE EREEIZ
MABEE ( [&ZAHE]) - LEBELR
BREE 2 BESINIRIEE) - HOKEHEZ
FHENREIE T RIAER ER AR © %
FHEIMARRMA RS AR R R AR R 40
T

Group and University Z&EE Kk H K

2019
$'000
Fr

1,771

2,220
9

2,223

907

907

3,087

2018
$'000
TIT

243

2,283

2,283

755
755

1,771

FEBE &5 R RE S

RE-E—R/—A"FE  HERHELE—
HEBL [—H—58] HERREEE
([—%—&at8l] ) - AEBBELER
B2BESNMZMED - BHABH —F—
BR AT Bl EIS P BURE R R R AR A -
— SRR R ARBAA R S AR R
ARELT

Group and University Z~& 8 K K

2019
$'000
Fr

741

866
1

867

747
747

861

EBHBKRE 2018/2019 BT &

2018
$'000
T

1,149

(12)

(12)

396
396

741
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14 Deferred capital funds

14 BRESFESE

Group 5% MH

Leasehold Fixtures and Construction
Buildings improvements  equipment in progress Total
By HEMERE KERIE EEITR k)
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Bt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
Balance at 1 July 2017 R-ZB—tFtA—HW
®1z 1,587,467 166,735 70,242 22,381 1,846,825
Transfer from deferred income & B8 EIEU A 13 - 25,044 15,452 51,006 91,502
Transfers B = 34,663 685 (35,348) -
Release to statement of BAZEREGER
comprehensive income (47,675) (48,383) (25,344) - (121,402)
Balance at 30 June 2018 R-Z2—NEXA=+ER
and at 1 July 2018 —Z—-)\$tHA—HNERF 1,539,792 178,059 61,035 38,039 1,816,925
Transfer from deferred income & B REW A 13 - 36,436 38,197 33,124 107,757
Transfers EE - 44,362 19,478 (63,840) -
Release to statement of BAZEKEE
comprehensive income (47,674) (53,667) (26,056) = (127,397)
Balance at 30 June 2019 R=ZB—hEXA=THH
w1z 1,492,118 205,190 92,654 7,323 1,797,285
University KX
Leasehold Fixtures and Construction
Buildings improvements  equipment in progress Total
By HEVERE RERRE EEIR Fek)
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Bita Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
Balance at 1 July 2017 R=TB—tFEtHA—HW
g 1,584,965 163,808 69,607 22,381 1,840,761
Transfer from deferred income & BFEIEU A 13 = 24,082 14,488 51,006 89,576
Transfers EERE - 34,663 685 (35,348) -
Release to statement of BAZEREGEE
comprehensive income (47,602) (47,431) (24,724) = (119,757)
Balance at 30 June 2018 R-—NEXA=+HR
and at 1 July 2018 —E-\EtHA-ANEE 1,537,363 175,122 60,056 38,039 1,810,580
Transfer from deferred income BRI A 13 - 35,615 37,929 33,124 106,668
Transfers B - 44,362 19,478 (63,840) -
Release to statement of BAZEWEGER
comprehensive income (47,602) (52,730) (25,437) - (125,769)
Balance at 30 June 2019 R-ZB—AEXA=THH
®17 1,489,761 202,369 92,026 7,323 1,791,479
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15 UGC funds

Balance at 1 July 2017

Transfer from/(to) statement of
comprehensive income
Inter-fund transfer

Balance at 30 June 2018

Impact on initial application of
HKFRS 9

Adjusted balance at 1 July 2018

Transfer to statement of
comprehensive income
Inter-fund transfer

Balance at 30 June 2019

(a) General and development reserve fund (“GDRF”) represents
the unspent UGC funds (i.e. the recurrent grants other than
earmarked grants for specified purpose) of the University. The
balance of GDRF at the end of the funding period (usually a
triennium) that can be carried over to the next funding period is
limited to a maximum of 20% of the approved recurrent grants
for the University other than the earmarked grants for specific
purposes for that funding period. Should the balance of GDRF
at the end of the funding period exceed the ceiling allowed, the

R_B—tEtP—AMNER
#/a/(Z) 2EBER

o EEAR
REB-—NFEXRAZTHNESR

KA BB I3RS ER
BN E

REZB-N\FLtA-BNRBREE
Brrmkak

o BER
R-B-NWERNA=THNER

excess amount is refundable to the UGC.

(b)  Matching grant funds are funds granted by the HKSAR

Government on a matching basis for qualified private donations
raised by the University. The matching grants can be used for
supporting activities within the ambit of UGC-recurrent grants.
Details of income or expenditure incurred for the Matching Grant

Scheme are shown in Note 21(a).

Notes to the Financial Statements

15 HESEHES

Note
Kt

16

1.3(a) (FF)

16

PR SRR M

Group and University & B K H K

General and Matching

development grant

reserve fund funds
—RRER Y& Total
HEES e FLE-C)
$'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Tt Fr

(Note a) (Note b)

(M52 (3£ 2)
491,254 89,565 580,819
29,454 (7,600) 21,854
(15,904) = (15,904)
504,804 81,965 586,769
334 - 334
505,138 81,965 587,103
(12,283) (4,161) (16,444)
(10,752) - (10,752)
482,103 77,804 559,907

—MEERFEHES ( [BEE2]) B
BRAARBEGER BRI
ETEREERAGNIEERR) - @
AESNEFH CBERP=F) EmkH
wer (BB T EREY) K2 T8
BEERNEEIEER (TEREHRSKRA
BIEERT) 120%  MRFHHEESR
B B R AR A AR EIR
BHEMSRARETHES

EHHEDSREESEEBEITHRK
FHRBARNEERILAERE - UFR
EHNTAERNES - REHEBIEA
RREDHESRTE B EE RS
3 - RHHBE ST ERBBA R
ERSIRKE21 (F) -

EBHBKRE 2018/2019 BT & 55



THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &H##H B K2

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bx 5B #iB55) - BT £ BB BE )

16 Restricted funds

16

EEES

Group and University ZA&EB K H K

Endowment funds BZ&E £ (Note a)(HizEF)

Cheung's  Shun Hing Wing Lung Unspent
Family  Education Lady Bank Student balance for
Matching Charity and Charity Ivy Wu Li & Fung Exchange research and
grant funds Funds Funds Scholarship Scholarships  Scholarship other projects
RYHEE B EEMER [ FlY  KER{TBEE  Subtotal RAWER Total
2  mEES HEHS #2e ot QiR NEt EHbIEEB AR E2
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
izt T T T T F T T T T
(Note b)
(H&EZ)
Balance at 1 July 2017 R=-ZE—tFtA—A
WER 20,671 3,133 5,403 6,118 4,029 517 39,871 53,400 93,271
Transfer from/(to) statement of & B/ (£) 2EKEER
comprehensive income 135 11 9 7 (5) (4) 153 153
Inter-fund transfer E R 15 - 15,904 15,904
Balance at 30 June 2018 and W=ZE—NEXA=1+H
at 1 July 2018 R=Z2-N\%¥
tA-RAWER 20,806 3,144 5412 6,125 4,024 513 40,024 69,304 109,328
Transfer from/(to) statementof & A/ () 2EKEE
comprehensive income 101 28 108 28 (1) - 264 - 264
Inter-fund transfer EoMERE 15 - 10,752 10,752
Balance at 30 June 2019 R-Z-AEXA=TH
&7 20,907 3,172 5,520 6,153 4,023 513 40,288 80,056 120,344
(a) Endowment funds represent grants and donations on which the () BAESEHXNZRIBEENERRE

University would, according to the wishes of the donors, keep

the principal intact and only use income generated from the

fund to support activities of designated purposes.

(b)

the balances of general and development reserve fund

designated for different research and knowledge transfer

Unspent balance for research and other projects represents

projects. Inter-fund transfer between restricted funds and UGC
funds represents the net balance of funds set aside for specific

research and knowledge transfer projects during the year and

expenditure incurred under these projects.
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17 Other funds

Balance at 1 July 2017

Transfer from statement of
comprehensive income

Balance at 30 June 2018

Impact on initial application of
HKFRS 9

Adjusted balance at 1 July 2018

Transfer from/(to) statement of
comprehensive income

Balance at 30 June 2019

Balance at 1 July 2017

Transfer from statement of
comprehensive income

Balance at 30 June 2018

Impact on initial application of
HKFRS 9

Adjusted balance at 1 July 2018

Transfer from/(to) statement of
comprehensive income

Balance at 30 June 2019

(a)  Other operation reserves are funds other than those described in
Note (b) below, Notes 15 and 16. They are used to finance the

R-E—tFtA-HNER
#EH2HERER

R-E—NEAAS+ENEE
e ER
R E
RoE-NEtA—BH
BRALS
BRE/ (5) 2EMRE

REZB-NEAAZTHNER

R-Z—tFLtA—BNET
BaEmkaER

R-B-NEXA=+ANEE

IR BB 13RS E R
FOEMTE

R-B—N\FEtH—BH
ARG

A (2) 2EkER

REZB-NEAA=THNER

Group’s activities in general.

(b)  Donations and benefactions represent the reserves of non-

refundable donations from the donors.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B IR BT
17 HiphES
Group R&EH
Other Donations
operation and
reserves  benefactions Total
Hih 2 @R BR KRB wiE
Note $'000 $'000 $'000
HifaE T T T
(Note a) (Note b)
(BT 5EFR) (FIzEZ)
445,824 53,561 499,385
35,783 8,007 43,790
481,607 61,568 543,175
1.3(a) (FF) 7,514 - 7,514
489,121 61,568 550,689
26,117 (7,572) 18,545
515,238 53,996 569,234
University X
Other Donations
operation and
reserves  benefactions Total
Hih 2 @R BR&EE FEk ]
Note $'000 $'000 $'000
izt T T T
(Note a) (Note b)
(PR EERR) (fFzEZ)
422,382 53,091 475,473
34,863 8,007 42,870
457,245 61,098 518,343
1.3(a) (FF) 7,514 - 7,514
464,759 61,098 525,857
25,646 (7,572) 18,074
490,405 53,526 543,931

Hip 2 BRBATIIMNE (2)

- P RE

15 R sE16FTi AN E & - W EHEIA

ERAEEN —REDRRES -

BRRIAS T RIRE TIRME 2 185

ol -

EBHBKRE 2018/2019 BT &
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18 Segment Report for UGC-funded and
Non-UGC-funded operations

Segment Report prepared for the year ended 30 June 2019 with the

adoption of the CAGs with effective from 1 July 2018

18 HETEBRIERSTEHTENS
IHiRE

KA - N\F+A-HREANKADH
ol MBRHEBE —Z-AFAAA=ZTHILFE

HHRES
Group &&£E
Inter-segment
UGC-funded Non-UGC-funded transaction
activities activities elimination 2019
HEE FHEE Sub-total  2IEMZ  Net total
BENES EHEE PNeE O RBIEE k]
Self- Non-UGC-
financing funded
activities research Donation Other
ERAE activities activities activities
ZIEE MEES BEEE HihEE)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fi Fr T T T Fit Fit Fr
(Note b)
(H&EZ)
Income WA
Government subventions BT 999,808 64,118 - 36,357 1,100,283 1,100,283
Tuition, programmes and other fees ~ 2% - RIEMEAMIE 277969 257,153 - 4,575 13,554 553,251 (478) 552,773
Donations and benefactions BRKE - - 1,749 50,332 182 52,263 (12) 52,251
Auxiliary services B /B AR TS 7,659 30,346 6 38 854 38,903 (1,612) 37,291
Interest and net investment income  F| 8 BIR & F = 30,256 3,476 - 3,259 15,398 52,389 - 52,389
Other income HiA 13,338 7,450 1,245 1,339 2,116 25,488 (149) 25,339
1,329,030 362,543 3,000 59,543 68,461 1,822,577 (2,251) 1,820,326
Expenditure i
Teaching, learning and research HE - BIRAR
Teaching and research HERMFR 788,351 160,487 5,499 50,827 51,085 1,056,249 (1,351) 1,054,898
Library EZtE 50,921 13,540 77 914 42 65,494 (11) 65,483
Central computing facilities R BRI 74,297 19,860 103 34 94,294 94,294
Other academic services H b BT AR 7S 49,872 17,981 - 67,853 (330) 67,523
Institutional support HEZIER
Management and general EER—REE 88,971 19,685 172 542 281 109,651 (100 109,641
Premises and related expenses & KA 246,672 54,404 1,286 3,169 3,307 308,838 (518) 308,320
Student and general education BER—RHUE R
services 46,289 47,095 11,537 12,912 117,833 (31) 117,802
1,345,373 333,052 7,137 66,989 67,661 1,820,212 (2,251) 1,817,961
(Deficit)/surplus and total ERAAEE (FB)/
comprehensive income for BEHR2EKE
the year before transfers e (16,343) 29,491 (4,137) (7,446) 800 2,365 2,365
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18 Segment Report for UGC-funded and
Non-UGC-funded operations (Continued)

the adoption of CAGs

Income
Government subventions
Tuition, programmes and other fees
Donations and benefactions
Auxiliary services
Interest and net investment income
Other income

Expenditure

Teaching, learning and research
Teaching and research
Library
Central computing facilities
Other academic services

Institutional support
Management and general
Premises and related expenses
Student and general education

services

Surplus/(deficit) and total
comprehensive income for
the year before transfers

Notes to the Financial Statements
g s ek

18 HESTHRFHESTEHEDNS

IHRE (8)

Segment Report prepared for the year ended 30 June 2018 prior to RRASEESIERZARHIBE T —N\F
NA=ZTHIEFENDIERS
Group A~5%£E
Inter-segment
UGC-funded Non-UGC-funded transaction
activities activities elimination 2018
HEG FHEE Sub-total  DIEMEZ  Net total
BENEE EHEE e RHEH e
Self- Non-UGC-
financing funded
activities research Donation Other
BERE activities activities activities
2E8 L) BYED EEH
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr T T T Fit Fit Fr
(Note b)
(Ht&EZ)
WA
HSEB < 968,863 49,979 8,730 - 37,509 1,065,081 1,065,081
B RIEMEMWE 273,740 220,428 - 2,163 13,258 509,589 (612) 508,977
BRRBEH - - 2388 64,455 47 66,890 (4) 66,886
bt 8 AR A% 7,556 29,107 2 45 985) 37,245 (963) 36,282
8 RIGEF 7,497 594 6 1,462 2,093 11,652 11,652
HigA 5,468 7,009 10,270 703 3,059 26,509 (84) 26,425
1,263,124 307,117 21,396 68,828 56,501 1,716,966 (1,663) 1,715,303
X
HE - BIRIAR
HERMR 699,362 145,234 20,706 49,875 60,959 976,136 (1,080) 975,056
EE 52,352 5,561 - 914 291 59,118 (3) 59,115
AR BIERHE 71,659 7,075 = = 735 79,469 79,469
H BT AR TS 54,113 7,906 - - 388 62,407 (242) 62,165
HEE
EER—MFE 72,800 28,282 2,160 424 575 104,241 (4) 104,237
& RIEEHX 239,877 14,557 - 2,970 3580 260,984 (177) 260,807
B4R —WHE R
50,972 36,718 - 6,524 14,600 108,814 (157) 108,657
1,241,135 245,333 22,866 60,707 81,128 1,651,169 (1,663) 1,649,506
EERARFERR
(B#B) R2HEKE
k] 21,989 61,784 (1,470) 8,121 (24,627) 65,797 65,797
EBHE KRR 2018/2019 B f5if & 59
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18 Segment Report for UGC-funded and
Non-UGC-funded operations (Continued)

Segment Report prepared for the year ended 30 June 2019 with the
adoption of the CAGs with effective from 1 July 2018

Income
Government subventions
Tuition, programmes and other fees
Donations and benefactions
Auxiliary services
Interest and net investment income
Other income

Expenditure

Teaching, learning and research
Teaching and research
Library
Central computing facilities
Other academic services

Institutional support
Management and general
Premises and related expenses
Student and general education

services

(Deficit)/surplus and total
comprehensive income for
the year before transfers

60

18 BEEEBIRIEHEEENFTHNG
IHRE (8)

REE-_Z—\FtHA—BRERNKERD#
EolMERHEBE _Z-AFNA=ZTHILFE
B IR E

University X

Inter-segment
UGC-funded Non-UGC-funded transaction
activities activities elimination 2019
BEe FHEE Sub-total  DIEMZ  Net total
EEiEE EHE P RHHEH ekl
Self- Non-UGC-
financing funded
activities research Donation Other
BEAE activities activities activities
ZED HiE® BHED EHED
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $'000
Frr Fr T T F F Fr Fr
(Note b)
(U9
A
B E 999,808 64,118 - - 1,063,926 1,063,926
BE . REMHMEKE 277969 257,151 - 4575 1,809 541,504 (478) 541,026
BR KRB - - 1,749 50,332 - 52,081 (12) 52,069
BB AR TS 7,659 30,346 6 38 854 38,903 (1,087) 37,816
.8 RILEF W 30,256 3,180 - 3,259 15,199 51,894 - 51,894
Hlg A 13,338 7,400 1,245 1,339 694 24,016 (76) 23,940
1,329,030 362,195 3,000 59,543 18,556 1,772,324 (1,653) 1,770,671
Xt
HE - B RIE
HERMR 788,351 160,461 5499 50,827 3,955 1,009,093 (1,166) 1,007,927
BEf 50,921 13,540 77 914 42 65,494 (11) 65,483
R E R HE 74,297 19,860 103 - 34 94,294 94,294
H 2T AR TS 49,872 17,981 - 67,853 (330) 67,523
EEST
EER—MREE 88,971 19,677 172 542 68 109,430 (10) 109,420
RE& RAABRZ 246,672 54,351 1,286 3,169 965 306,443 (105) 306,338
BA KRB R
46,289 47,095 11,537 12902 117,823 (31) 117,792
1,345373 332,965 7,137 66,989 17,966 1,770,430 (1,653) 1,768,777
ERAAEE (FB)/
BHR2ERE
okl (16,343) 29,230 (4,137)  (7,446) 590 1,894 1,894
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18 Segment Report for UGC-funded and
Non-UGC-funded operations (Continued)

18 BEEZRBIRIEHEEANFTHNG
IHRE (8)

Segment Report prepared for the year ended 30 June 2018 prior to RS EESIBAZAGEEIEE T —\F
the adoption of CAGs NAZ=THIEFENDIERE
University X
Inter-segment
UGC-funded Non-UGC-funded transaction
activities activities elimination 2018
nEe FHEg Sub-total  HERIZ  Net total
EHEE EHEE e RHHEH ko)
Self- Non-UGC-
financing funded
activities research Donation Other
BRAE activities activities activities
ZEE) MEES BEEE HitnjEE)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FiT Fi Fr Fr T T T Fr
(Note b)
(Hf&E2)
Income ['ON
Government subventions IEgisgetka 968,863 49,979 8,730 - 5,799 1,033,371 1,033,371
Tuition, programmes and other fees 2% « REMEMWE 273740 220,426 2,163 2923 499,252 (612) 498,640
Donations and benefactions B &IBE) - - 2388 64,455 66,843 (4) 66,839
Auxiliary services B B AR 7,556 29,107 2 45 585) 37,245 (819) 36,426
Interest and net investment income  F 8 AR E F U zE 7,497 453 6 1,462 2,038 11,456 11,456
Other income HiA 5,468 6,962 10,270 703 1,976 25,379 (45) 25,334
1,263,124 306,927 21,396 68,828 13,271 1,673,546 (1,480) 1,672,066
Expenditure Xt
Teaching, learning and research HE .« B RAE
Teaching and research HERMR 699,362 145,208 20,706 49,875 20,646 935,797 (950) 934,847
Library G ] 52,352 5,561 - 914 291 59,118 (3) 59,115
Central computing facilities R E R 71,659 7,075 735 79,469 79,469
Other academic services H i BT AR A 54,113 7,906 388 62,407 (242) 62,165
Institutional support HE®R
Management and general EER—MREE 72,800 28,274 2,160 424 388 104,046 (4) 104,042
Premises and related expenses K& &R 239,877 14,504 2,970 1,668 259,019 (124) 258,895
Student and general education B KRB R
services 50,972 36,718 6,524 14,599 108,813 (157) 108,656
1,241,135 245,246 22,866 60,707 38,715 1,608,669 (1,480) 1,607,189
Surplus/(deficit) and total ERAAEER
comprehensive income for (F518) R2HEKE
the year before transfers Pk 21,989 61,681 (1,470) 8,121 (25,444) 64,877 64,877
Note: B3E -
(a) Disclosures regarding segment report are included as a requirement of the () MRS EREHRE DIRAEGHEZEL - T1
SORP but the report is not designed to fully comply with the requirements of ETRERBEBMBREERFET [LEHH]
HKFRS 8, Operating segments. ZHREMmmREL o
(b) Inter-segment transactions mainly included internal rental transactions. (2) HEREzZS5FERENDBEELZHER

6l
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18 BEEEBIRIEHEEENFTHNG

18 Segment Report for UGC-funded and
Non-UGC-funded operations (Continued)

Note: (Continued)
(c) Cost allocation practices for UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities

The University determines the basis of allocation of costs between
UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities with reference to the
UGC Notes on Procedures and the CAGs which is effective from 1 July
2018.

The classification of UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities is
based on the funding source of the activities. The direct costs of the
UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities are both charged fully
and directly to the respective activities.

The CAGs define principles and approaches of cost allocation,
including the definition of cost pools and cost drivers for UGC-funded
and non-UGC-funded activities on a full cost recovery basis.

IHRE (8)

iR ()

(R)  HEAGEBMEHE G AR EERIARAD

BABEHES [BFEE] g =% —
NELA—HEEROKAD HE5|HE
RESEYEIFREREYEY ZHAK
HAGADNFBEGENTBNDER
LOEBME SRR AET - MEERAR
HAGAEHNEHETE BB
o BHZREEHEAREBAE -

PR B G S| SR A S BL RO R RIS

E o BRERADEMKABRNESE K
HAGABEIFHETEER 2K
ARG ERALE

iv The comparative figures of 2017/18 with the adoption of the CAGs are (M) REHEGEZLERAERBEEND AR
exempted by the UGC in accordance with SORP in the first reporting & RZE— —NEFEERRAR
period of adoption of such segment reporting in 2018/19. ROEIES|E - AlRREY —T—t/—N\
WEE OB -
19 Government subventions 19 BIFFEER
Group &% H University # X
2019 2018 2019 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt Fr Tt
Subventions from UGC HESRN
Block/Recurrent Grants BRI R R 839,325 830,057 839,325 830,057
Earmarked Grants BERR 38,115 36,027 38,115 36,027
Home Financing Scheme EFEBTE 414 854 414 854
Earmarked for Pension Top-up EEMAERKRS 2,133 2,577 2,133 2,577
Earmarked Language Immersion HETE FB UM R e
Programmes 4,165 4,546 4,165 4,546
Research projects HRIEE 15,422 18,200 15,422 18,200
Housing-related benefits other than FEFERTE 2 EEER
Home Financing Scheme BRI 1,384 1,661 1,384 1,661
Upgrading of Language Teaching RABSHENET R
& Learning Facilities - 22 - 22
Knowledge Transfer M ES 2,048 2,336 2,048 2,336
Teaching and Learning HEE BN ER
related initiatives 4,707 3,617 4,707 3,617
Other Earmarked Grants H A ERR 7,842 2,314 7,842 2,314
Government rent and rates refund ROl R = A 11,418 11,415 11,418 11,415
Capital Grants and Alterations, HERG RS - MmE
Additions, Repairs and HEReE TR REAE
Improvements Block Allocation 94,374 91,364 94,374 91,364
983,232 968,863 983,232 968,863
Grants from government agencies BUF BB 117,051 96,218 80,694 64,508
1,100,283 1,065,081 1,063,926 1,033,371
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20 Tuition, programmes and other fees 20 2E - JFENHMGKE

Group %M

University X

2019 2018 2019 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
5 F7 T F7
UGC-funded programmes HEGEYRE
Tuition fees 25 265,279 261,874 265,279 261,874
Programmes and other fees RE R E A E 12,690 11,866 12,690 11,866
Non-UGC-funded programmes FHESERRE
Tuition fees 28 262,253 226,429 250,508 216,094
Programmes and other fees i R E AU 12,551 8,808 12,549 8,806
552,773 508,977 541,026 498,640
21 Donations and benefactions 21 ERKIEE
Group A& H University A
2019 2018 2019 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fx Fr T
Capital projects H#EEE 4,005 3,709 3,825 3,662
Scholarships, prizes and bursaries REG KNP ES 3,692 5,618 3,692 5,618
Donations for academic activities HEIMEERBR 44,554 57,559 44,552 57,559
52,251 66,386 52,069 66,839
(a) Matching Grant Scheme () EeHwBhEstEl
The HKSAR Government launched the Sixth Matching Grant BERFIITHRBAR _-_E—_F/\A
Scheme for the period from 1 August 2012 to 31 July 2014 for —HEZZT-—NFtLtA=+—HHHET
17 statutory post-secondary institutions and approved post- 1TEVEE MR E EHBEREHEITE S
secondary colleges to match the donations secured by them. W [MEHBIEE ] - UERHEER
Donations paid to the University during the stated period are BITEEMENRR - HARNZBHEED
eligible for such matching grants. WEMBRE A ER2EZA L HE
SEHEl -
BHRBERE 2018/2019 M H & 63
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21 Donations and benefactions (Continued)

(a)  Matching Grant Scheme (Continued)

All matching grants and matched donations were used for

21

supporting activities within the ambits of UGC recurrent grants.

Details of the related income or expenditure incurred for the
matching grants and matched donations are shown below.

Balance at 1 July

Income
Donations/grants refunded
Interest/investment income
Miscellaneous income

Expenditure

Teaching and research
enhancement

Internationalisation and student
exchange activities

Scholarships and prizes

Bursaries

Student development

Others

Transfer to endowment funds
under restricted funds

Balance at 30 June

Note
Bt

RtA—-BHER

WA
REBRFAEDE
MERERE IS
Hep A

% i
HARBRIF

RRERERBE
Riae

PES

BARR

Hfty

BEETESACER
B:5

RARAZTHWER (i) (=)

BRREE (&)

(F) ECHmBhestal (8)

P76 Bie %5 476 Bh & RN JE Aic 31 &9 18 SR B 2 1
EHESEE I EREERNNED -

FERCH 1B I B 4 7 Bh 2 RO AR RE M A
KRBT

Group and University A& E K #H K

2019 2018
Matching Matched Matching Matched
grants donations grants donations
FEHmme  BEREHNER siheie  ERHMER
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
S Fr Tt Tt
81,965 59,733 89,565 68,183
= = (20) (20)
3,366 1,941 947 976
338 2,260 416 2,002
3,704 4,201 1,343 2,958
1,070 3,483 1,174 5,902
2,210 221 2,874 102
3,042 610 3,018 903
- 15 - 20
376 231 419 399
1,066 3,670 1,323 3,850
7,764 8,230 8,808 11,176
(101) (246) (135) (232)
77,804 55,458 81,965 59,733

0] All expenditures were incurred on degree and above level of studies.

(i) Unspent balance of $77,804,000 (2018: $81,965,000) is included
in matching grant funds under UGC funds and unspent balance of
$55,458,000 (2018: $59,733,000) is included in donations and
benefactions under other funds, endowment funds under restricted
funds and donations with designated purposes under deferred

income.
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21 Donations and benefactions (Continued)

(b)  Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students

(“the Pilot Scheme”)

The Pilot Scheme is a five-year scheme launched by the EDB in
2011/12 to subsidise post-secondary students participating in

short-term internship or learning programmes in Mainland China

on a matching basis. The University has duly complied with

the terms and conditions for the matching and use of matching

grants under the Pilot Scheme as set out in the Operating Guide.

For the year ended 30 June 2019, the related income or

expenditure incurred for the Pilot Scheme are shown below.

Balance at 1 July 2018

Income
Donations/grants received
Miscellaneous income
Interest and investment income

Expenditure
Programme fee
Others

Balance at 30 June 2019

Note
iz

R=B-NFtA—-ANEE

LON
BRI
HA
8 RE AR

Xt
EBER
HA

R=Z-hnEXA=1H

HEE (i) (=)

21

Notes to the Financial Statements
g s ek

B RIEE (&)

() BEE2H£RmEREEE ( [EE5
Z1)
LEFERBEAFNTHRERNHER
R ——/—ZFEHEORAFTE
DB A BB AR F 242 Nip 2
MEBMEENERES - HAERES
FFERIEERm P ICH W 2 VAL ¥
FR R AR o
REBEZE_Z-NAFRAA=ZTHILEFE -
LB EERENBR RSB EH
MERAMA KT EFHENT ¢

Group and University Z&E@E KRB A

Matching Matched

Grants Donations

[RESEEE R E B

$'000 $'000

T+t T

1,790 363

1 -

1 -

428 48

428 48

1,363 315
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21 Donations and benefactions (Continued) 21 ERREBEY (&)
(b)  Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students () BEE24£nmEREEsra ( [£55
(“the Pilot Scheme”) (Continued) g (&
For the year ended 30 June 2018, the related income or RBE_Z—N\FENAZTHILFE -
expenditure incurred for the Pilot Scheme are shown below. SEFT R ERE BRI RS/ E R
AR A R BT -

Group and University A& @R X

Matching Matched
Grants Donations
RSN TR kEE A
Note $'000 $'000
Bt T F
Balance at 1 July 2017 R-B—tEtA—ANER 2,219 1,047
Income WA
Donations/grants received BB = -
Miscellaneous income HegA - -
Interest and investment income FBRIZE F = - -
Expenditure it}
Programme costs EENE 429 -
Others Hit - 684
429 684
Balance at 30 June 2018 R=B-N\FXA=+H
MWER (ii) (=) 1,790 363
(i) The matched donation is for supporting the development of the (=) BEHNBHREANEBDRAEE -
University.
(i) Unspent balances of $1,363,000 (2018: $1,790,000) and $315,000 (=) 1,363,0007 (=%—/\% : 1,790,000

J0) &315,0007T (=Z—/\4F : 363,000
) MEFEABIESERIEKANZE
R B EERANE IS ERE 2 B -

(2018: $363,000) are included in grants from government and other
agencies and donations with designated purposes under deferred
income respectively.
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22 Auxiliary services

Student hostels
Rental income

Rental contribution from staff

Others

BAES
HEHA
Hith

23 Interest and net investment income

Net realised and unrealised
gain/(loss) from financial assets
measured at fair value through

profit or loss
Interest income
Foreign exchange loss

REBRDABEFARZEN
EREAENDER
RARERFNE (B1R)

FEMA
LR

Notes to the Financial Statements

B IR BT
22 MIBARTS
Group A£MH University Ak
2019 2018 2019 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T Fr T
29,331 28,376 29,331 28,376
3,494 4,167 4,019 4,311
3,554 3,155 3,554 3,155
912 584 912 584
37,291 36,282 37,816 36,426
23 FERFEEFWE
Group =% H University ok
2019 2018 2019 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fix Frx Fit
24,784 (3,485) 24,784 (3,485)
27,833 15,807 27,338 15,611
(228) (670) (228) (670)
52,389 11,652 51,894 11,456
EEHEAR 20182019 s > O/
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24  Expenditure

Teaching, learning and research
Teaching and research
Library
Central computing facilities
Other academic services

Institutional support

Management and general
Premises and related expenses
Student and general

education services

Total expenditure 2019

Teaching, learning and research
Teaching and research
Library
Central computing facilities
Other academic services

Institutional support
Management and general
Premises and related expenses

Student and general
education services

Total expenditure 2018

68

2 B RHRE
HELHR
ElEH
R ERERSE
H At MRS

HBEXE

EBR—MREE
& RARRERAX

LR —RBERE

SE-NEXHBE

B8 BiRMR
HERHR
EE
R ERERSE
H At MRS

BEXR

EBR—MREE
& RARRRX

BER—RBERYG

ZE-\FEXHAE

24 ZH
Group &M University ik
Employee Employee
benefits benefits
expenses Operating 2019 expenses Operating 2019
BEREH expenses  Depreciation Total REREF expenses  Depreciation Total
53 EERY wE ot 53 HIERAX wE -t
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $°000
T T T Fr T T T Fr
(Note 25) (Note 25)
(Ki=E25) (BfzE25)

916,142 130,744 8,012 1,054,898 875,360 126,605 5962 1,007,927
35,999 28,111 1,373 65,483 35,999 28,111 1,373 65,483
51,956 31,339 10,999 94,294 51,956 31,339 10,999 94,294
60,097 7,342 84 67,523 60,097 7,342 84 67,523

1,064,194 197,536 20,468 1,282,198 1,023,412 193,397 18,418 1,235,227
(Note 24(a)) (Note 24(a))
(RI=E24(F) (H&E24(F))
93,478 16,084 79 109,641 93,478 15,863 79 109,420
48,810 151,307 108,203 308,320 48,810 149,325 108,203 306,338
49,068 67,919 815 117,802 49,068 67,909 815 117,792
191,356 235,310 109,097 535,763 191,356 233,097 109,097 533,550
1,255,550 432,846 129,565 1,817,961 1,214,768 426,494 127515 1,768,777
Group ~5E University X
Employee Employee
benefits benefits
expenses Operating 2018 expenses Operating 2018
EEEF expenses  Depreciation Total EEREH expenses  Depreciation Total
X% BIEAR & #m 53 HEMX & #m
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000 $°000
T T T Fr T T T Tr
(Note 25) (Note 25)
(KizE25) (BizE25)

849,721 117,541 7,794 975,056 814,939 114,090 5,818 934,847
33,075 24,786 1,254 59,115 33,075 24,786 1,254 59,115
46,716 20,748 12,005 79,469 46,716 20,748 12,005 79,469
53,742 8,351 72 62,165 53,742 8,351 72 62,165

983,264 171,426 21,125 1,175,805 948472 167,975 19,149 1,135,596

(Note 24(a)) (Note 24(a))
(RIEE24(F) (H&E24(F))
86,897 17,279 61 104,237 86,897 17,084 61 104,042
45,377 113,659 101,771 260,807 45,377 111,747 101,771 258,895
47,678 59,091 1,888 108,657 47,678 59,090 1,888 108,656
179,952 190,029 103,720 473,701 179,952 187,921 103,720 471,593
1,163,206 361,455 124,845 1,649,506 1,128424 355,896 122,869 1,607,189
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24. Expenditure [Continued) 24 XZH ()

(a)  Analysis of operating expenses - Institutional support () HERIHSIT —HELE

Group &5KE University X

2019 2018 2019 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fx FiT Fx Fr
Management and general EER-REE
Office expenses FEYNEN b 11,727 11,997 11,688 11,978
Audit, professional and legal fees B BEREEER 2,194 2,574 2,111 2,496
General insurance —MARBR 2,018 1,449 1,919 1,351
Minor equipment and WU R R IR E
system implementation 145 1,259 145 1,259
16,084 17,279 15,863 17,084
Premises and related expenses REREBEER
Utilities NARRHE 21,696 22,091 21,088 21,452
Repair and maintenance and #iE - RERNATE
minor works 78,169 42,090 77,857 41,699
Premises rental EFHEE 822 933 822 933
Government rent and rates 2= B0 N A8 12,347 12,191 11,502 11,510
Cleaning services BRRE 11,129 10,035 11,021 9,940
Security services IRE AR 14,561 14,118 14,491 14,051
Office expenses FENEN b3 7,618 8,862 7,618 8,862
Telecommunications EHEH 1,073 456 1,034 417
Minor equipment and NS R RIRE
system implementation 3,146 2,074 3,146 2,074
Property insurance bIERES 599 634 599 634
Notional rental for staff quarters BEIFEMNEEMES 147 175 147 175
151,307 113,659 149,325 111,747
Student and general BAER —RABRE
education services
Student hostels expenses BAFEEYIH 18,995 14,397 18,995 14,397
Health care centre BERE AR 3,205 3,160 3,205 3,160
Scholarship, bursaries and RES - PR
prizes to students BAEE 25,530 25,856 25,520 25,855
Extra-curricular activities FRINEED 14,872 11,567 14,872 11,567
Office expenses WAEFREZ 4,691 3,421 4,691 3,421
Others Hih 626 690 626 690
67,919 59,091 67,909 59,090
Total ek ol 235,310 190,029 233,097 187,921
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25 ESEMREXZ

25 Employee benefits expenses

Wages and salaries
Unutilised annual leave and others
Gratuities
Contributions to MPF scheme
Contributions to superannuation
scheme
Provision for/(reversal of)
long service payment
Housing benefits
Other staff related benefits

(a) Higher paid staff

Group %M

University X

2019 2018 2019 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T Fr Fr
T& MM 1,051,904 977,233 1,012,099 943,162
REEFEBRREM 12,080 5,753 12,080 5,753
LM E 42,660 39,148 42,660 39,148
RTE ST EIRER 20,484 19,199 19,731 18,551
NESFEINER
60,671 59,004 60,671 59,004
RIS S B (EE)
49 (102) 25 (53)
EEEF 33,953 30,596 33,953 30,596
HAhiE S REEF 33,749 32,375 33,549 32,263
1,255,550 1,163,206 1,214,768 1,128,424

Total annual equivalent emoluments irrespective of the funding

sources for the higher paid staff are analysed as follows:

Basic salaries, housing allowances,
gratuity/contribution to retirement

plans, other allowances and
benefits in kind (Note)

B3 BERR - ARE/
RS FHEIOHR - EARRE
REDHMzE ()
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133,424

(F) =#HEER

SHEENFHSERE (TEEES
HOREAM]) DATEAS

Group and University A&E@BREH A

2019 2018
$'000 $000
T Fi
113,185



THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &/H##H B K2

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B #4855 - BTB £ BB BE)

25 Employee benefits expenses (Continued]

(a)  Higher paid staff (Continued)

The above emoluments fell within the following bands:

Emoluments bands:

$1,800,001 - $1,950,000
$1,950,001 - $2,100,000
$2,100,001 - $2,250,000
$2,250,001 - $2,400,000
$2,400,001 - $2,550,000
$2,550,001 - $2,700,000
$2,700,001 - $2,850,000
$2,850,001 - $3,000,000
$3,000,001 - $3,150,000
$3,150,001 - $3,300,000
$3,300,001 - $3,450,000
$3,450,001 - $3,600,000
$3,600,001 - $3,750,000
$3,750,001 - $3,900,000
$3,900,001 - $5,400,000
$5,400,001 - $5,550,000
$5,550,001 - $6,150,000
$6,150,001 - $6,300,000

Note:

Benefits in kind include medical insurance, leave provision and on-campus
accommodation. The notional rental value of the President’s Lodge is
$1,083,000 (2018: $1,073,000) and each flat of the staff quarters is
$420,000 (2018: $452,000).

Be4aR :

1,800,0017T - 1,950,0007T
1,950,0017T - 2,100,0007T
2,100,0017T - 2,250,0007T
2,250,0017T - 2,400,0007T
2,400,0017T - 2,550,0007C
2,550,0017T - 2,700,0007T
2,700,0017T - 2,850,0007C
2,850,0017T - 3,000,0007T
3,000,0017T - 3,150,0007C
3,150,0017T - 3,300,0007T
3,300,0017T - 3,450,0007T
3,450,001t - 3,600,0007C
3,600,0017T - 3,750,0007T
3,750,0017T - 3,900,0007T
3,900,0017T - 5,400,0007T
5,400,0017T - 5,550,0007T
5,650,0017T - 6,150,0007C
6,150,0017T - 6,300,0007T

(b)  Key management personnel compensation

The key management of the Group and the University refers to
those senior management having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group
and the University and their compensations are analysed as

follows:

Salaries, wages and allowances

Employer’s contribution to
retirement schemes

Provision for gratuities and
unutilised annual leave

(c)  No remuneration or other emoluments has been paid to any
Council members in respect of their honorary services provided

to the Group.

TE& - FHENFNEEE
BEHRIRES HR

H B 2 AR SZER
FRERE

25

Notes to the Financial Statements
g s ek

BEEHFAEZ (&)

()

=¥EE (&)
e aBRIo T
Number of staff EE&E
2019 2018

13 15

6 6

5 3

4 8

9 5

2 1

5 2

2 2

- 1

4 2

1 2

1 -

1 -

- 1

1 -
54 48
MteE -
EYFEEEBERRE - BE T ZAMBRBAMNRK
WETE - BB EETTEEX41,083,000T (=
ZT—)\f :1,073,0007T) @ MEMABEBESH
fEFTHR(E4) 5420,0007T (ZF—/\4F : 452,000
JT) e
IBERABHMH

AEERHANEEERABEAES
MBS - SR HIAEERHA
ERNERERAR AN
T

Group and University 25 @Kk H K

2019 2018
$'000 $'000
Fr T
24,523 23,388
2,115 2,026
1,724 821
28,362 26,235
(R) FARESKENEREREGNE S

{0 T WA (T SR A -

EBHBKRE 2018/2019 BT & 7 1



THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &#&#E K2
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bx 5B #iB55) - BT £ BB BE )

26. Taxation

The University and its subsidiaries are exempted from payment of
Hong Kong Profits Tax by virtue of Section 88 of the Inland Revenue

Ordinance.

27. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

(a)  Cash (used in)/generated from operations

Surplus for the year

Adjustments for:

- Depreciation

- Management fees for
investment portfolios

- Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

- Net investment (gain)/loss from
financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss

- Grants released from deferred
capital funds

- Interest income

- Exchange differences

Changes in working capital:

- Increase in contract assets

- Increase in accounts receivable,
deposits and prepayments

- Increase/(decrease) in provision
of employee benefits

- Increase in contract liabilities

- Increase in accounts payable
and accruals

- (Decrease)/increase in
deferred income

REE AR

FEIER
- e
- RERANERE

- HEME  BER
JfEE (k)
- AR BER B
WERMEEREF
(Uez%) /518
BERTEERESH
WBhE
- MBEYWA
- BRER
EEELHNEE
- BHBEEN
- FEURERT - e R
FE A FRIE AN
- & @ FIB s a0/
GRA)
- BHAEEMN
- FEfBRFR M fEETFRIA
320

- BTN CRLA) /
& hn

Cash (used in)/generated from operations &3& (fff) /EANERE

/2
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27

Note
st

23

14
23

BiIE

BB (BB ED) 8815 BARSHE QR
R R EBTEN -

el ERME
() %&E (WR) ELNRS

Group A& E
2019 2018
$'000 $'000
Fr Fx
2,365 65,797
129,565 124,845
2,568 1,844
22 (1)
(24,784) 3,485
(127,397) (121,402)
(27,833) (15,807)
(12) (204)
(6,605) =
(20,630) (10,509)
12,688 (3,946)
10,064 -
21,890 26,742
(10,635) 18,167
(38,734) 89,011
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27. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement 27

(Continued)

(b)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Deferred capital funds

Balance at 1 July 2018/2017
Changes from financing cash flows:

- Grants and donations received
for additions of property,
plant and equipment

Other changes:

- Grants released from deferred
capital funds to statement of
comprehensive income

- Non-cash additions of property,
plant and equipment

Balance at 30 June 2019/2018

28. Capital commitments

Note
libEz

pidid-g -5

RZB-N=ZZE—+tFELtA—-BNER 14
KEFMERED TEE) -
- BIEEWE - S REE
Frig e Bl & R I8

HpBB
- BETAAESRARE
L T
14
REN L
IR % N

R-B-Hh/I=ZB-N\E
NA=Z+HEWNER 14

28

As at 30 June 2019, the Group and the University had capital
commitments on leasehold improvements, furniture and fixtures as

follows:

Contracted but not provided for

EEEREE

EMERE -

=

Notes to the Financial Statements
g s ek

ZEHaRERME (&)

Group and University Z&E@ERH A

(2) FEmEEHNEGEHE
Group AR&EE
2019 2018
$'000 $'000
Fr T
1,816,925 1,846,825
106,936 90,196
(127,397) (121,402)
821 1,306
1,797,285 1,816,925
BEAEiE

REZ-AFARA=TH  AEERFAHHE
RERKBENEARFENT

2019 2018
$'000 $000
T F5
78,978 57,825

SEHE AR 2018/2019 B /3
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29. Other commitments

(a)

(b)

As at 30 June 2019, the Group and the University did not have
any future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases.

In respect of the operating lease, the Group and the University
incurred operating lease charge in respect of rental properties
of $1,060,000 for the year ended 30 June 2019 (2018:
$1,144,000).

As at 30 June 2019, the Group and the University had future
aggregate minimum lease receipts under operating leases in
respect of rental properties as follows:

Within one year —FR

(c)

The leases typically run for a period of one to three years.
Leases are usually reviewed annually to reflect the market
rentals.

As at 30 June 2019, cash funds of $8,517,000 (2018:
$7,807,000) mainly representing Students’ Union membership
fees are held by the University on behalf of the Students’ Union
for settlement of expenditure to be incurred.

30. Related party transactions

Other than those disclosed in Note 8(b) and Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements, the University undertook the
following significant transactions with the EAUHK SCPE during the

year.
Outsourced management fee income SNHIRITTER B YA
Rental income AW A
(a)  Outsourced management fee income was charged by the
University in accordance with the terms mutually agreed by both
parties.
(b)  Rental income was charged in accordance with the terms

74

mutually agreed by both parties.
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29 HthixiE

() RZZ-AFRA=+H  AEEEH
ARENTTHBEEEHENRESEEE
REE -

REEHEMS  ARERIARNNE
E-ZT-NAFANAZTALFEMNR
EWMEEAA1,060,000L(=ZF—N
F :1,144,0007T) °

() RZZ-NAFRA=+H  AEERH
ABBEEEMEZ A ARELEHE
RREEHEWFARREAT

Group and University <& @K H KX

2019 2018
$'000 $'000
Fr T

304 309

HENHEB-—RAP—E=F - FKH
BESFEMEE  UkMRHSEE -

(A) RZZE—NAEXNA=Z1+H #HARE
£ @$5H8,517,000LEE (ZE— N\
% 17,807,0007T) - ZEEFEREE
SEeBTAEINEESIH -

30 FABARS

BT RA MBS IRARMEES(L) M EE 11 P ER
Oh - BRI NG EBFFEHE BT T A=

RZ °
2019 2018
Note $'000 $'000
Ftat Fr T
(a) (F) 23 23

(b) (2) 53 58

() SMHETTIRB YA TR IR & 5 15 38 /0 16k
FREBFCRULER -

() THSWATYRIEETT 1535 H 1ERURER



THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &/H##H B K2
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31.

31 #HFEHTESEEEDMER

Involvement in unconsolidated structured entity

AEERHAFLTEMERTHRE - ZRE
B MR AR EER R E W -

The Group holds interests in an unlisted unit trust. The purpose of the
investment is to generate investment income for the Group.

AREERFEHAEERBERAFERIIRN
T AEERARRAFENEREENRE
BE -

The table below sets out interests held by the Group in an
unconsolidated structured entity. The maximum exposure to l0ss is
the carrying amount of the financial assets held.

Group and University A&E@ R X

2019 2018
Carrying amount Carrying amount
included in financial included in financial
assets measured at assets measured at
fair value through fair value through
Total net  profit or loss (Note 9) Total net  profit or loss (Note 9)

Number of assets of ERF AR AR(EBE Number of assets of BT ARAR(EE
investee funds investee funds ~ FTAIBEZSAIEEE  investee funds investee funds AT AIBZ KIS B
WIREES WREES EENFEESE HREES HREEE EREMRESE
HE WFEE (H$5E9) HE WFEE (Mt5E9)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T T T
Investment in unlisted FE LB
unit trust {SFEIRE 1 1,358,359 1,272 1 1,455,182 1,312

32.

BE-T-NER-F-NERA=HALS
ERES Y E P S EE S

During the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2019, the Group did not
provide any financial support to the unconsolidated structured entity

and has no intention of providing financial or other support.

The Group can redeem unit in the above unit trust upon request.

Accounting estimates and judgements 32

Depreciation

The Group’s property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets after
taking into account their estimated residual value. The Group reviews
the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in
order to determine the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded
during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are
based on management’s historical experience with similar assets and,
where applicable, taking into account anticipated equipment upgrade
and replacement. The depreciation charge for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

N3Hs - Wik SRR Nk H A S8

AEE A DR B EFHR L EREERE -

Eat et RFER

e

AEEEFRME  BERRBOGEE
% mEMBE A AHRAERRETHES
g ARBESFEHNEENTET U REREE
B #EAEEREAREPHRANTEI LS
B IRHREEENREEEEHAUEE
BRI (WER) ZEAAREBHOIR
TTREMOERMETE - MRBEMFHERE
REREH  AEEGHERRABHONES
$ o
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32.

33.

76

Accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)

Involvement in unconsolidated structured entity

The Group has concluded that the unit trust in which it invests, but
that it does not consolidate, meet the definition of structured entity
because:

- the voting rights in the unit trust are not dominant rights in
deciding who controls them as they relate to administrative tasks
only;

- each unit trust’s activities are restricted by its prospectus; and

- the unit trust has narrow and well-defined objectives to provide
investment opportunities to investors.

Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the
year ended 30 June 2019

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2019 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

32

33

Bt st RIVET (4)

HFEHTEESEERPIOER
AEEETAFEMARA M ENEM(ETR
ENABBERNTE  RANT :

- ERRETHRERERTRERETHF
B SIREESREARE R R

- BEEMEFENEDHEHZRNEEFTEH
HE: X

- BUEARAREERHRERERE
BT B AR -

EFEMENKREBREZF—-NFSA
=+ BIEFREARIEST  HEAIF
2R RERYRE

BEAMBRERTER  BESHMASER
MZIRMEET ~ FAERIFIRER < BUL(EFT -
AMREERE T -NFARAA=ZTHILFE
HAREM PR B ERMEMERERA - BFEUT
EANANEERZER] -

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after

T B SR L B AR B R R

HKFRS 16, Leases
(BEMBREER) F165% — HE

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
(EAEMBREER) 2 AFE T+ FRPNFEIE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and interpretations

is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements. While the assessment has been
substantially completed, the actual impact upon the initial adoption

of the standards may differ as the assessment completed to date is
based on the information currently available to the Group, and further
impacts may be identified before the standard is initially applied in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ending 30 June
2020.
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